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GOBIERNO DE PUERTO RICO
AUTORIDAD DE PUERTO RICO PARA EL FINANCIAMIENTO DE
FAC I LI DADES I N DUSI-RIALES TU R [S-|CAS, E DUCATIVAS, M E DICAS Y
DE CONTROLAMBIENTAL

a-

22de agosto de2024

Honorable Jos6 Luis Dalmau Santiago
Presidente, Senado de Puerto Rico
El Capitolio No.l
Plaza de la Democracia
San Juan, Puerto Rico

Estimado Honorable Presidente del Senado:

En virtud de la Ley Num. l2l del 27 dejunio de1977, segun enmendada (la "Ley de
AFICA"), la misma dispone que la Autoridad de Puerto Rico para el Financiamiento de
Facilidades lndustriales, Turisticas, Educativas, M6dicas, y de Control Ambiental
("AF|CA"), entregue al Cobernador de Puerto Rico y a la Asamblea Legislativa de Puerto
Rico los siguientes documentos, desputis del cierre de cada afio fiscal:

lnforme Anual al cierre del aflo fiscal 2023, sobre el estatus y actividades de
financiamiento de AFICA, incluyendo un desglose de todos los financiamientos
otorgados desde su creacion y los financiamientos vigentes.

2. Estados financieros auditados de AFICA para el ario fiscal 2023.

A tales efectos y segrjn dispone la Ley de AFICA, adjunto encontrara el lnforme Anual
de AFICA para el cierre del afio fiscal 2023.

tame

U m rrer
Director Ejecutivo
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GOBIERNO DE PUERTO RICO
AUTORIDAD DE PUERTO RICO PARA EL FINANCIAMIENTO DE
FAC I Lt DAD ES I N D usrRtALES TU R [:slcAs, E DUCATIvAS, v ro tcas v
DE CONTROLAMBIENTAL

lnforme Anual al Gobernador de Puerto Rico y
Asamblea Legislativa de Puerto Rico

Afro Fiscal2o.23 que finaliz6 el30 de junio de2o23

En virtud de la Ley N0m.l2'l de 27 de junio de19T7. seg0n enmendada.
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DEPUERTORICO
AUIORIDAD DE PUERIO RICO PAA/A EL FINANCINIEMTO DE
FACIIIDAD6 INDUSTRIALESTUPTSflCAS, EOUCATIVAS, MEDlcAS Y
DE CONTROLAMBIENIAL

CONTENIDO DEL INFORME ANUAL

lntroducci6n

lnforme Sobre Financiamientos AFICA

Financiamientos AFICA vigentes al cierre del Afro Fiscal 2023 que flnaliz6 el 30 de junlo
de2O?3.

Financiamientos posteriores al cierre delAffo Fiscal 2o.23 que finaliz6 el30 deJunio de
20.23.

llr.

- Historial de Financiamientos AFICA desde su comienzo operativo (Anejo A).

- Otros Temas.

Estado Financiero Auditado de AFICA - 30 de junio de 2023.

I. INTRODUCCI6N

La Autoridad de Puerto Rico para el Financiamiento de Facilidades lndustriales, Turfsticas,
Educativas, M6dicas, y de Control Ambiental ('AFICA'), es un corporaci6n p0blica e
instrumentalidad del Gobierno de Puerto Rico. AFICA fue creada mediante la Ley N0m. 121 del27
de junio de19T7, seg0n enmendada, conocida como la 'Ley de la Autoridad de Puerto Rico para
el Financiamiento de Facilidades lndustriales, Turisticas, Educativas, M6dicas y de Control
Ambiental' (la 'Ley de AFICA'), con el prop6sito de proveer una fuente alternativa de
financiamiento para proyectos comerciales e industriales, seg0n definidos por la Ley de AFICA y
sus Normas Prestatarias del 9 de agosto de 2OO4.

Este lnforme Anual se somete a la Asamblea Legislativa de Puerto Rico y al Gobernador de Puerto
Rico en virtud delArticulo18 de la Ley de AFICA.

AFICA financia proyectos mediante la venta de bonos AFICA a trav6s de colocaciones privadas o
colocaciones en los mercados p0blicos de bonos municipales de los Estados Unidos de Am6rica
y de Puerto Rlco. AFICA presta el producto en efectivo de dichos bonos a entidades corporativas
para financiar proyectos seg0n permitidos por la Ley de AFICA y sus Normas Prestatarias.

Los bonos de AFICA son obligaciones limitadas de AFICA y el repago y colateral de dichos bonos
es responsabilidad legal y contractual de las entidades corporativas a las cuales AFICA presta el
producto en efectivo de la emisi6n de dichos bonos.

AFICA es administrado por la Autoridad de Asesorla Financiera y Agencia Fiscal de Puerto Rico
('AAFAF'), Todos los financiamientos AFICA estdn sujetos a la consideraci6n, evaluaci6n, y
aprobaci6n de la: (l) Junta de Directores de AFICA (ii) Junta de Directores de la Autoridad de
Asesoria Financiera y Agencia Flscal de Puerto Rico, y seg0n sea requerido, (iii) Junta de
Superuisi6n y Administraci6n Financiera para Puerto Rico (?Sf).

Las operaciones corporativas de AFICA no dependen de asignaciones presupuestarias del
Gobierno de Puerto Flico.
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Fecha

Originaci6n Proyecto

lmporte

Original

Balance Vitente

30-Jun-23

Tipo

Proyecto

17-Nov-21

22-May-79

28-Dec-18

19-Apr-17

18-Dec-L2

7-Aug-1.2

27-Jun-!2

30-Ma r-11

30-Ma r-L 1

11-Apr-05

1-Dec-04

15Ja n-02

21-Dec-00

26-Oct-00

lJun-00

1-Oct-98

L-Dec-95

s s7,410,000 s

s 21,600,000 s

S g,ooo,ooo S

s 2s,70s,000 s

5 23,330,000 S

S 58,4ss,ooo S

s 78,380,000 s

5 s9,649,74s S

S 26,3ss,ooo S

S zg,aso,ooo S

s 36,s7s,000 s

S 2o,36s,ooo S

s 86,73s,000 s

s 30,oo0,ooo s

s 19s,000,000 s

S 13,21s,000 S

s 19,090,000 s

Auxilio Mutuo Series 2021

lnter American University of P.R., Series 2019

Baldwin School Project

Hospital de la Concepci6n

University ofthe Sacred Heart Project, Series 2012

lnter American University, Series 2012

Ana G. M6ndez University System

Galeria Tower at San Patricio Project 20L1

Trump lnternational Golf Club Puerto Rico Project

Ana G. M6ndez University System

I nter Ameri ca n Uni vers i ty of P.R.

Ana G. M6ndez University System

University Plaza

Palmas del Mar Country Club

AES Puerto Rico, lnc.

Guaynabo Warehouse for Emergencies

Guayna bo Munici pal Government Center

Total

55,630,000

21,600,000

8,428,Lr1,

13,825,000

5,610,000

39,610,000

25,383,500

22,350,000

20,2L5,OO0

13,320,000

10,56s,000

49,190,000

22,485,OO0

t44,570,OOO

520,000

S 790,754,74s S 453,301,711

Hos pita I

Educa ci ona I

Educacional

Hos pita I

Educa ci ona I

Educacional

Educa ci on a I

Comercia I

Tu ris ti co

Educa ci ona I

Educacional

Educacional

Comercia I

Turisti co

I ndustri a I

Comercia I

Comercia I

GOBIERNO DE PUERIO RICO
AUTORDAO DE PUERTO RICO PARA ELFIMNCIAMIENTODE
FACIUDAoES INDUSTRIALESTURtsflCjs, EDUCANVAS, MEDCASY
DE CONTROL AMBIENTAL

II. INFORMES SOBRE FINANCIAMIENTOS AFICA

A continuaci6n, presentamos el balance de principal de los financiamientos AFICA vigentes al
cierre delAffo Fiscal 2o.23 que finaliz6 el3O de junio de20.23.

t
2

3

La tabla siguiente resume los financiamientos AFICA realizados desde el comienzo del afro
calendario 2Ol7 hasta la fecha de este lnforme Anual (3O de junio de 2023). El pago de principal
e intereses de estos financiamientos estSn al dia:

Fecha cantidad Principal Balance Tipo de Fecha de

1Ju I -41

1-Oct-44

15-Dec-45

15-Nov-30

l. Refinanciamiento balance adeudado AFICA Series 2O'll y financiar mejoras de capitaly expansi6n
de las facilidades m6dicas del Grupo Auxilio Mutuo. El repago proviene de las operaciones del
Grupo Auxilio Mutuo.

2. Construcci6n de nuevo complejo de dormitorios para estudiantes, 6reas comerciales, y nuevo
estacionamiento para el campus universitario de la Universidad lnteramericana de Puerto Rico en
elsector de'Cupef del Municipio de San Juan.

3. Construcci6n y desarrollo de un nuevo centro de ciencias y biblioteca para la escuela 'Baldwin
School'.

4. Flefinanciamiento de bonos AFICA emitidos el 15 de junio de 2OOO. Este flnanciamiento AFICA fue
totalmente pagado en diciembre 2022.

4

Auxilio Mutuo Series 2021 S s7,41o,ooo s ss,630,000 Hospital17-Nov-21

S 21,600,000 s 21,600,000 Educational22-May-L9 Universidad lnteramerican de Puerto Rico, lnc.

28-Dec-18 The Baldwin Scholl of Puerto Rico, lnc. S s,ooo,ooo S s,aze,rrr Ed uca ti ona I

19-Apr-17 Hospital de la Concepci6n, lnc. S 2s,7os,ooo s Hospital

GerrcA
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GOBIERNO DE PUERTO RICO
AUTORIDAD DE PUERIO RICO PAPA EL FII{ANCIAMIENTO DE
FACIUDADES INDUSIRIAIESTURISnCAS, EDUCATTVAS, MEDICASY
DECONTROL AMBIENTAL

Financiamientos Cerrados Posterior al Affo Fiscal 2023 que finaliz6 el3O de junio de 2025

- El 15 de diciembre de 2o.23 se cerr6 el 'AFICA Hospital Revenue Bonds Series 2023' por
$35.oOO,oOO para beneficio del Grupo Auxilio Mutuo. Este financiamiento AFICA facilit6 la
compra y mejoras al Hospital San Pablo en Bayam6n.

El 14 de febrero de 20.24 se cerr6 el AFICA Dock and Warf Revenue Bonds Series 2024' por
$'|87,OOO,OOO para beneficio del San Juan Cruise Port LLC. Este financiamiento AFICA provee
fondos para las reparaciones y mejoras sustanciales a los muelles'1, 3, 4, y muelles 1 y 2 Pan
Americanos bajo acuerdo de concesi6n entre San Juan Cruise Port LLC y la Autoridad de
Puertos de Puerto Rico.

- El 5 de marzo de 20.24 se cerr6 el AFICA Series 2C.24 A Bonds AES Puerto Rico Project- por
$1.l1,921,663 para beneficio de AES Puerto Rico, L.P. Este financiamiento AFICA facilit6 el
refinanciamiento de los bonos'series 2OOO A'($l6l,9OO,OOO)y "Series 2OOO B'($33,]OO,OOO).

Historial de Emisiones de Bonos AFICA - Aneio A

Este anejo contiene el listado de las emlsiones de bonos AFICA realizadas desde que AFICA
comenz6 a operar en el1978 hasta el3l de marzo de2024.

Otros Temas

En marzo 2019, AAFAF public6 en su p6gina de internet un nuevo documento corporativo e
informativo de AFICA, preparado en inglds y espafrol, que explica el funcionamiento de AFICA y
como estructurar y solicitar un financiamiento. Tambi6n, se incorpor6 en la p6gina de internet de
AAFAF una secci6n especifica sobre AFICA disponible en el siguiente enlace:

http://unrvur.aafaf. pr.qov/pu bl icationsreports-copy. htm I

III. ESTADO FINANCIERO AUDITADO

Se aneja a este lnforme Anua! el estado financiero auditado de AFICA para el affo fiscal,30 de
lunio de 2023.

Flespetuosa mente sometld o,
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Hlstorlcal AFICA Bond lssuancei
As of March 2024

Carrce

7A

lndustrial

industrial

Pollutlon

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrlal

lndustrlal

lndustrial

Medi@l Fac.

lndustrial

lndustrlal

lndustrlal

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrlal

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

I ndustrla I

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrlal

lndustrlal

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

Mediel Fac

Medical Fac

Medical Fac

1-Jul-79

1-Jul-79

1-Nov-79

1-Feb-80

lJun-80

1-Jun-80

1-Mar-81

1-Jun-81

10-Jun-81

1-Jul-81

23-Nov-81

1-Dec-81

1-Mar-82

1-Mar-82

1-Mar-82

1-Oct-82

15-Oct-82

1-Nov-82

1-Mar-83

PPG lndustries, lnc. Proiect 5 2,72|,OOO 1-May-98 Popular

Union Carbide Corporation Prciect s 8,s00,ooo 1-Jun48 Popular

garceloneta Secondary Sewage Treatmt. s 23,s00,000 1-AuE-98 chase

Abbot Chemicals, Inc. S 2o,ooo,ooo 1-Jul-O9 Chase

Renasa lnc,- squibb corporation s 30,000,000 1-Jul-04 Chase

lsomedlx, Puerto Rlco, lnc. s 2,0s0,000 15-Nov-90 North carolina NatlBank

Union Carbide Corporation s 7.000.000 1-Feb{5 Popular

St.Lukc's Hospital S 12.7so.ooo 1-Jun-10 Popular

HJ. Heinz Company s s,640,000 1-Jun-95 Mellon Bank

Ralston Purina Company 5 19,9oo,ooo 1-Jul-95 FirstTennessee

Airco caribe, lnc. S 2o,ooo,ooo 1-Sep-83 chase

Avicon, lnc s 6,0O0,O00 30-Sep-85 wachovia

Ba@rdlCorpoGtion 3,r95,712s 22-Od-94 Popular

mzer, lnc. S 22,ooo,ooo 1-Mar-01 chase

searle & Company s 4,200,oo0 1-Apr-84 Chase

(FHA lns. Mort.)TuEbo Medl@l Center S 29,860,000 1-May-86 Popular

Pepsico, lnc s 16,000,oo0 1-May-84 Chase

H.J. Heinz, Companv s 5,000,000 1-Jun-84 Mellon Bank

R6he Products, lnc. s 20.000,000 10€ct-o1 chase

C.R. Bard, lnc. s 3.100.000 1-Jul-01 Summit & Elizabeth Trust

1-Aue-11Schering - Plough Corporation s 40,000,000 chase

MitelCorDoEtion 7.500_000s 1-Seo-91 Popular

Rexnord, lnc. s s,000,000 1-Sep-06 M & I Marshall & Lsley Bank

Revnold Metals Company s 40,000,000 1-Sep-86 cltibank

American Cyanamid Corporation S 11,ooo,ooo 1-Nov-86 Popular

Abbott Laboratories S 14,ooo,ooo 1-Oct-84 Popular

Union C!rblde Corporation 5 18,500,000 15-Dec-86 Popular

A,H. Robbins Companv, lnc. s 15,200,000 1-Nov-91 Central FideliW Bank

ga€rdiCorporation 17,000,000s 1-Dec-84 Popular

lntel CorpoEtlon s 40.000.000 1-Mar-87 Deutsche (Banke6 Trust)

Merk & co.,lnc. s 40.000.000 1-Mar-92 Popular

General Electric co. S 3o,ooo,ooo 1-Mar-89 chase

HJ. Heinz, Company Tuna Vessel S E6,ooo,ooo 1-Apr-92 Mellon Bank

H.J, Heinz, Company Tuna Vesrel s 34,ooo,ooo 1-Apr-92 Mellon Bank

Union Carblde CorpoEtion s 21,s00,000 1-Apr-87 Popular

Sterling Drug lnc. 5 27,2oo,OOO 1-Jun-92 Popular

Scherins - Ploush Corporation s 20,000,000 1-Jul-92 Chase

GeneEl Foods Corporation 7,000,000s 1-AuE-92 Chase

Merck & Co., lnc. s 20,500,000 1-Oct-g2 Popular

Prime Computer, Inc, s 10.000.000 15-Oct-92 Popular

Wang Laboratories S 2o.ooo.ooo 1-Nov-92 The First Natl BX of Boston

Abbott Laboratories S s4,ooo,ooo 1-Mar-23 Bank of NY

Becton, Dickinson and Company s 8,000,000 1-Mar-13 Chase

Union Carbide Corporation s 16,000,000 15-Mar-13 Popular

Sun Reflnlng and Marketing Company s 3,300,000 1-Mar-93

lnstituto Medico del Norte (FmHA) S 11,655,000 1-Ap.{3 Popular

CD-lnstltuto Medlco del Norte S 1,22o,ooo 1-Apr-03 Popular

CD-lnstituto Medico del Norte 74,775,OOOs 1-Apr-85 Popular

S 5,25o,ooo 1-Apr-93 chase

lssuance
Drte

Facc MJt u r ity
Drte

AFICA Bond
Trustcc

Projo.t
NJrrr

1-Mar-83

lndustrial Page 1 of 5

Philadelphla Natl Bank

-83 | Richarson - Vicks lnc.
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Hlstorlcal AFICA Bond lssuances
March 2024

dlarrce

29-Jun-83

1-Jul-83

1-Jul-83

15-Nov-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

1-Dec-83

19-Dec-83

21-Dec-83

23-Dec-83

23-Dec-83

29-Dec-83

3O-Dec-83

1-Mar-84

1-Dec-84

21-Dec-84

15Jan-85

26-Mar-85

1-Oct-85

1-Nov-85

15-Nov-85

1-D.c-85

lndustrial

Medical Fac

Medical Fac

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

Medi6l Fac

Medical Fac

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

Medical Fac

lndustrial

Commercial

Commercial

Pollution

Commercial

Cohmercial

lndustrial

Commercial

Fac

Tropic Sun Shipping C.,lnc. - Sun Co. s 7,700,0oo 1-Mar-93 Philadelphia Natl Bank

Ponce Fed. Savings & Loan Assoc. of P.R. ) 10,000,000 1-Apr-90 Popular

Amcrian Cvanamid companv s 18,000,000 1-May-13 Popular

Hospltal Auxllio Mutuo s 3,175,000 1-May-08 Popular

Ralson Purina Companv S 5,ooo,ooo 7-lan-24 Mellon Bank

Roche Products s 6,000,000 1-Jun-88 chase

Th. Goldschmidt AG S s,ooo,ooo 1-Sep-98 Morgan

BOC. lnc. (Alrc) s 30,000.000 1-..lul-93 chase

Baxter TEvenol Laboratories S 42,5oo.ooo 1-Sep-12 Chase

s 12.9s0.000 1-AuE-25 PopularCentro Medico Psiquiatri@ del caribe

PopularCentro Medico Psiqulatrico del Caribe $ 13,62s,000 1-Aug-87

1-Auq-13 chaseEli Lilly and Company s 20,000,000

1-Sep-13 CitibankReynolds Metals CompanV S 41,285,000

Deutsche (Bankers Trust)lntel Corporation S 8o,ooo,ooo 1-sep-13

Hospital san Pablo s 21,020,000 1-Aug-23 Popular

Pepsico, lnc, S 32,soo,ooo 15-Nov-13 chase

United Technologics Corporation S 4,3oo,ooo 1-Dec-93 Popular

Want Laboratories S 2s,8oo,ooo 1-Dec-93 The First Natl BK of Boston

H.J. Heinz Companv S 9,ooo,ooo 1-Dec-93 Mellon Bank

Bacardi CorpoEtion s 15,200,000 1-Dec-13 citibank

The Upiohn comDanv s 40,000,000 1-Dec-23 chase

S 24.ooo.ooo 1-Mav-14 Mellon BankWarner - Lambert

1-Dec-18 PopularMerck & Co., lnc. $ 20,000,000

lJan-14 chaseMotorola, lnc. s 20,000,000

chaseSqulbb Corporation S 25,ooo,ooo 1-Dec-23

Sterling DruE, lnc. 5 1s,7s0,000 1-Dec-23 Popular

Key Pharma@uti@ls lnc. S 4o,ooo,ooo 1-Dec-13 Southeast Bk

Centro Medico del TuEbo s s3,97s,000 15-Jan-25 Popular

Amfesco lndustries, lnc. s 7,000,000 1-Jan-96 cheml@l

lntel Corporatlon S 3o,ooo,ooo 1-Dec-13 Deutsche (Bankers Trust)

Johnson & lohnson S 4o,ooo,ooo 1-Jan-14 US Bank Trust

Amerlcan Home Products Corp. S 4o,ooo,ooo 1-Dec-18 The Bank of NY

Darby Druq Companv s 5,000,000 1-lan-96 Chemlcl (Manufacturers)

s 9.000.000 1-Dec-g3 MorcanPall Corporation

s 10.532.000 1-lan-14 Us Bank TrustJohnson & Johnson, IncorpoEted

1-Mav-15 PopularAmeri6n Cyanamid Company s 20,000,000

PoDularHMCA (P.R.), lnc. S 11,soo,ooo 1-Aug-94

C.R. Bard, lnc. s 3,s00,000 1-Dec{4 chase

The Mennen Company s 9,2s0,000 1-Dec-14 chase

M/A - Com, lnc. s s,000 000 1-Dec-94 chemlcal

Doctor Pila Hospital s 19,450,000 1-Aug-25 Popular

The West Companv. lnc S 5,ooo,ooo 1-lan{5 chase

Pueblo lnternational, Inc. - Series A S 5,ooo,ooo 1-Oct{0 Popular

Pueblo lnternatlonal, lnc. - Series B s s,000,000 1-Nov-00 Popular

Puerto Rico Aqueduct & Sewer Authoritv s 175,000,000 15-Nov-18 chemical

American Airlines, lnc. s 35,160,000 1-Dec-25 Us Bank

S 26.000.000 1-Dec-00 PopularCitlProperties P.R., lnc. Office Building

1-Dec-95 chasePower conveBion, lnc. s 3,s00,0o0

1-Dec-97 PopularPueblo tnternational, lnc. - Series C 7,5OO,OOOs

U.S, TrustFundacion Educativa Ana G. Mendez S 23,1oo,ooo 1-Dec-15

lssuanae
Drtc

fa(c
Amount

Mat u rity
D.r tcNJnre Trustcc Typc

c(t

1-Dec-85

Educ. Page 2 ol 5
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Hlstorlcal AFICA Bond lssuances
Ae of March 2024

Cerlce

commercial

commercial

lndustrial

Tourism

Tourism

1-Jun-86

1-Jun-85

1-Oct-86

19-Jun-87

17-Jun-88

13-Oct-88

15-Oct-88

1-Nov-88

4-Nov-88

1-Dec-88

15-Dec-88

10-Feb{9

1-Jun-89

1-l

1-Jan-90

1-Feb-90

31-Jan-91

5-Mar-91

19-Jul-91

1-Nov-92

30-Nov-g2

Tra

Tourism

Commercial

Medi@l Fac

Tourism

Educ.

Commercial

Tourism

commercial

Commercial

Medical Fac

lndustrial

lndustrial

commercial

commercial

lndustrial

Commercial

seruice

Medi@l

Commercial

lndustrial

lndustrial

Tourism

Commercial

Medical Fac

Commercial

MediGI Fac

Educ

Commerclal

Commercial

Medical Fac

Commercial

H Educ

Tourism

commerclal

commercial

Educ

Ed

First SBS - CA Associates S 13,ooo,ooo 1-May-O6 Popular

Seguros de Seryicios dc Salud de P.R., lnc. S 1s,47o,ooo 15-May-01 Popular

Damas Hospital S 1s,57o,ooo 1-May-96 Popular

lndustrias Vasallo lnc,, Ponce Manuf. s 6,500,000 1-Jun-01 Popular

Dorado Beach Hotel Corporation S 74,ooo,ooo 1-Ju n-95 Popular

San Juah Hotel S 3o,soo,ooo 15-Oct-g6 Popular

Exabll, G.l.E. S 14,55s,000 15-Feb-00 Popular

The Normandle Hotel S 8,soo,ooo 1-Jul-07 Popular

lsland lnternational Leasing, lnc. S 23,ooo,ooo 1-Feb-99 Popular

Corp. Des. Econ. Carolina (CODESC,A) S 2o,75o,ooo 1-Feb-09 Popular

Southmark San Juan(Sands Hotel & Casino) s 38.000.000 1-Oct-07 santander

Cathollc Unlversity of Puerto Rlco S 15.265.000 1-Dec47 Popular

Ferrasdn DevelopinE ComoEtion s 3.800.000 1-Jun44 Pooular

Oriental FedeEl Saving Bank S 8,1oo.ooo 1-Apr{8 Popular

lnter American UniveEity of Puerto Rico S 2s,ooo,ooo lJun{8 U.S. Trust

H.l. Development S 28,670,000 1-Aug{3 Popular

HPH Real Estate $ 8,5oo,ooo 1-oct-o1 Popular

MayaEiiez Mall S 24,ooo,ooo 1-Nov-99 Popular

Doctor Pila Hospital S 2439s,ooo 1-Aus-28 Popular

Arochem lnternational S 17,ooo,ooo 1-Nov-96 Popular

San Juan Cement, lnc. S 26,000,000 1-Jan-O4 Santander

419 Ponce De Le6n, lnc. (Plaza Acudtica) S 12,ooo,ooo 15-Oec-03 Comm. Trust

Caribbean Airport Faclllties s 13,000,000 1-Jan-99 Popular

B & C Bottlers Corporation S 13.2oo.ooo 15-Apr-05 Popular

Plaza Guayama ShopDing Center S 12.930.000 1-Jun-11 Popular

AT&T - P.R. Fiber optlc Cable Pooulars ss,300,000 1-Jul-99

Taber Partners I (Howard Johnson's) S 27,6so,ooo 1-Aug{9 Popular

lnterlink Group, lnc. (Centrc Europa) S 18,7oo,ooo 1-Oct-11 Popular

Consolldated Medicl Plaza (caguas Medi@l Mall) S 3,600,000 1-Jul-06 Santander

TRU of P.R. (Toys "R" Us) S 2o,ooo,ooo 1-Nov-05 Popular

Syntex (F.P.) S 4o,ooo,ooo 1-May-15 Popular

Vent-Alarm Corporation S 3,ooo,ooo 1-Sep-10 Popular

El Conquistador Resort S 12o,ooo,ooo 1-Nov-g9 Popular

Luan lnvestment S.E. s 20,175,000 1-Mar-11 Santander

Cruz Azul de Puerto Rico s 14,000,000 18Jul-06 santander

Plaza del Caribe s 54.423.933 1-Sep-16 Popular

Damas Foundation (Series A, B, C) 17.004.492s 1-Nov-o5 Popular

Ana G, Mendez Educational Foundation s 14.100_000 U.s. TrustlJul-03
FJ Ventures, S.E. s 21.100.875 1-Jan-18 PoDular

Plaza del Norte (H.T. Venture, S.E.) S 64,400,000 1-Aug-18 Popular

Amerl@n International Plaza s 44,640,000 7-Oec-22 Popular

Plaza del Oeste (TJAC San Germdn S.E.) S 1s,s8o,ooo 1-Dec-18 Santander

St. Luke's Hospital Prcject S 1o,27o,ooo 1-Jun-10 Popular

Plaza luana DIaz Project S 17,ooo,ooo 1-Apr-18 Santander

Catholic Unlverslty of P.R. 10,750,O00s 1-Dec-07 Popular

San Juan Marriot (Condado Hotel) 87,500,OOOs 1-Dec-14 Santander

PIaza lsabela Development, S.E, s 21.340.000 1-Dec-19 Popular

Plaza Guamanf Proiect (cY ventures) 12.750.000s 1-Dec-19 Popula.

Polwechnic Universiw of P.R. s 16.500.000 1-Auc-24 Popular

San Patrlcio Plaza S 22.605.000 7)an-77 Santander

lssuancc
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Historiel AFICA Bond lssuances
As of March 2024

earlca

15Jan-95

1-Feb-95

1-Dec-95

19-Dec-95

21-Dec-g5

15-Jan-95

15-Feb-95

15-Nov-97

1-Jun-98

9-Jul-98

1-Od-98

20-Nov-98

15-Dec-98

1-Mar-99

31-Mar-99

15Jun-99

28-Oct-g9

1-Nov-99

1-Nov-99

1-Nov-99

1-Nov-g9

1-Nov-g9

10-Nov-g9

21-Mar-00

1-Jun{0

15-Jun-O0

25€d-00

26Oct-00

Tourism

Educ

Medi@lFac

Edu6tional

Medical Fac

commercial

Othe6

Tourism

Edu@tional

Tourism

Tourism

Medical Fac

lndustrial

lndustrial

Medi6l Fac

Medi6l Fac

lndustrial

commercial

Eduetional

Others

Tourism

lndustrial

Commercial

I ndustrlal

Tourism

Educational

commercial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

Commerclal

lndustrial

Tourism

lndustrial

commercial

Tourism

Tourism

Tourism

Tourism

Rfo Mar Resort Proiect s 115,847,9AA 1-Sep-14 Popular

lnter Amedcan UniveEitv of P.R. s 29,000,000 1-Apr-14 U.S, Trust

Rvder Memorial Hospital S ls,ooo,ooo 1-May-24 Popular

Polvtechnic UniveEiw s 4,500,000 1-AuR-24 Popular

s 53.85s.000 l)!124 PopularHospital Auxllio Mutuo Obligated Group

Plaza Palma Real S 43.4so.ooo 1-Jul-20 Popular

s 18.040.000 1-Jul-20 Santandersan Patrlcio Plaza (Phase ll)

Dodor Pila Hospital s 26,665,000 1-Aug-32 Popular

Guaynabo Municipal Government Center s 19,090,000 !-Jul-22 Popular

The Ritr-Carlton SJ. Hotel & Carlno s 8s,13s,000 1-Sep-25 Popular

Ana G. Mendez Universiw Svstem 5 23,600,000 1-Jan-15 U.S. Trust

Hampton lnn Hotel S 11,s5o,ooo 1-Mar-20 Popular

Hotel El Convento S 9,34o,ooo 1-Sep-20 Popular

Mennonite General Hospital S 39,330,000 1-Jul-26 Santander

Teachers Retirement Svstem Buildinc S 15,210,000 7lul27 Popular

Teachers Retirement Svstem Buildinc s 11,735,000 1-Jul-11 Popular

Hospital Auxilio Mutuo Obligated Group S 28,39s,000 1-Jul-26 Popular

Mennonite GeneGl Hospital s 11,200,000 !)ul2l Santander

S 8.s40.ooo 1-Nov-20 SantanderAshford Prebysterlan Community Hosp Parking

s 87.025.000 7-Ocl-22 Santanderlnter American Unlversity of P.R.

s 27,130,000 1-Sep-28 Popular

Ramallo lnternational Center S s1,74o,ooo 1-Jul-23 santander

Santander Loan Program - series A s s0,000,000 1-Jun-18 US Bank

Ana G. Mendez University System S 26,700,000 1-Oct-21 Us Bank

Guavnabo Warehouse for Emergencies S 13,215,000 !)ul-24 Popular

Rio Mar Resort Proiect s 746,sA4370 20-Dec-28 Popular

Fondo del seguro del Estado (carolina) S 26,22s,000 15-Dec-28 Santander

Plaza Las Amdricas S 200,003,601 1-Jul-29 Popular

Humacao Judicial Center 37,615,000s l-Oct-30 Popular

Embassy Suites Dorado del Mar s 33.000.000 1-Apr-19 santander

Ana G. Mendez Universitv Svstem S 41.870.000 1-Feb-29 Us Bank

San Lucas and Cristo Redentor Hospltals s 30,4ss,000 lJun-29 Santander

Cayo LarSo lnter-Continental Beach Resort s 7s,330,000 20-Dec-29 Popular

DoEl Financial Center S 44,75s,000 1-Dec-29 citibank

GE Capital - Masters Concrete 2,327,OOO$ 22-Oec-Og

GE Capital - Masters Agregates s 6,42s,0oo 5-Nov{9

GE Capital - Masters Agregates S 2,59s,ooo 22-Nov-09

GE Capital- Minimaster S 3,841,000 22-Dec-Og

GE Capital - Atlantic PIpe S s,ooo,ooo 5-Nov-09

Santander Loan Prosram- Series B s 25,000,000 1-Dec-19 us Bank

GE Capital - Hormlgonera MavaEilezana s 4,500,000

Embassv Suites San Juan S 38.4oo.ooo 1-Apr-2S Santander

1-Jun-26 Oeutsche (Bankers Trust)AES Puerto Rico S 1gs,ooo,ooo

Hospital de la Concepci6n s 37,21s,000 15-Nov-30 Wells Fargo (Noruest Bank)

Santander Loan Program- series C S 26,000,000 1-Dec-20 Us Bank

Paradisus Coco Bcach Resort S 58,290,000 20-Dec-30 Popular

Coco Beach Golf & Country Club S ls,ooo,ooo 20-Dec-30 Popular

Palmas del Mar Country club S 3o,ooo,ooo 20-Dec-30 UBS (Paine webber Trust)

Hampton lnn Hotel - Caguas S 19,ooo,ooo 20-Dec-30 Popular

GE Capital - Nidco Aggregates S 6,900,000 1-Dec-10
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Hlstorl6l AFICA Bond lssuances
As of March 2024

5 5,fi0,U4,117

eartce
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21-Dec{0
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1-Jun-01

28-Jun-01
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28-Feb-02

1-Nov-o2

19-Dec-02

1-Dec-04

8-Mar-05

18-Dec{9

30-Ma

r-11

27 -lun-!2

18-Dec-12

28-Dec-18

17-Nov-21

5-Mar-24

Industrial

lndustrial

Tourism

Edu6tional

commercial

lndustrial

Educational

lndustrial

Tourism

commercial

Others

lndustrial

lndustrial

lndustrial

commerclal

Educational

Tourism

Tourism

Educational

Tourism

Educational

Commercial

Commercial

Tourism

MedlcalFac

Medical Fac

Educational

Edu@tional

Educational

Medical Fac

Educational

Educational

Educational

Medical Fac

commerclal

lndustrial

Total AFIcA Bond lssued

15-Nov-15 santanderMOVA Real Estate s 17,000,000

The Bank of NYBristol- Myers Squibb CompanV S 15,2oo,ooo 31-Dec-30

Costa Sur Golf & contry Club -Seralles s 39,000,000 1-Od-30 Popular

University Plaza s 86,735,000 1-Jul-33 The Bank of NY

Belz Factory out,et World Pueno Rico s 56,91s,000 1-Dec-30 santander

GE Capital - Tech GrouD S 3,ooo,ooo 1-Ju!08

University of the sacred Heart s 2s,130,000 1-Sep-31 Popular

El Nuevo Dla S 130,000,694 1-Dec-31 US Eank

Embassv Suites DoEdo del Mar Hotel & Golf S 5,97s,ooo 1-Oct-26 Santander

Santander Loan Prorram- series D s 2s,000,000 1-Dec-21 tJS Bank

Humacao ludiclal center S 4.o95.ooo 1-Oct-30 Popular

Master Aggregates Serie A 823,150s 1-Nov49

Master Aeerepates Serie B Concrete Droducts S 1.621.0s0 1-Nov49

1-Nov-09Master Aggregates Serie C Mini-Master 5 7,8/,3,2s0

Ana G. Mdndez University System S 2o,36s,ooo 1-Dec-31 US Bank

Torre chard6n S s9,15s,ooo 1-Mar-32 Popular

Galeria Tower at San Patricio S 52,230,580 1-lun-32 santander

Doral Financial center Bullding s 7,600,000 1-Dec-29 Popular

Polytechnlc UnlversiW of Puerto Rlco s 34,330,000 1-Aug-32 Popular

Costa Caribe 2003 A - SerElles s 16,83s,000 1-Apr-33 Popular

coco Beach Golf & Countru Club (CAB's) 7,497 ,aS4s 20-Dec-34 Popular

lnter American UniversiW of P.R. S 36,s7s,ooo 1-Od-29 The Bank of NY

Costa Caribe Resort, 2005 Series A S 54.370.000 1-Apr-33 Popular

Ana G. Mdndez UniversiW Svstem 29,890,000s 1-Mar-36 US Bank

2L.775.OOOs 15-lun-20 PopularSan Patricio Plaza - 2009 A

PopularGaleria Tower at San Patricio Project S s9,649,74s 1-Apr-41

PoDUlarTrump International Golf Club Puerto Rico Project S 25,3ss,ooo 20-Dec-34

PooularHospital Auxilio Mutuo Obli8ated Group Project, 2011 A S 1o1,o35,ooo 1-Jul-33

Hospital Auxilio Mutuo Obligated Group Project, 2011 B s 11,s90,000 1-l ul-15 Popular

Ana G. Mdndez Unive6iw Svstem S 78,380,000 7-Apt42 US Bank

lnter American Univcrsity, Series 2012 S 58,45s,000 1-Oct-31 The Bank of NY

University of the Sacred Heart Proiect, Series 2012 S 23,330,000 1-Oct-42 Popular

Hospital de la Concepci6n, lnc, 2s,705,000s 15-Nov-30 Wells FarEo

The Baldwin School of Puerto Ri@, lnc. s 9,000,000 15-Dec45 City National gank of Florida

lnter American Universitv of P.R., Series 2019 s 21.600.000 1-Oct-44 The Bank of NY

57.410.000s 7)u147 ganco Popular de Puerto RicoAuxlllo Mutuo Series 2021

Banco Popular de Puerto RicoAuxilio Mutuo Revenue Bonds Series 2023 s 3s,000,000 1-Dec-25

The Bank of NYAFICI Dock and Warf Revenue Bonds Series 2024 S 187,ooo,ooo 1-Jan{6

AFICA Series 2024 AES Puerto Ri@ Project s 111,921,653 1-Oec-27 UMB Bank, N.A.
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ffQuTrndn & Co., CPA's LLC\y
INDEPENDEIT AUDTToRS, REPoRT

To the Board of Directors of
Puerto Rico lndustrial, Tourist,
Educationat, Medicat and Environmentat
Control Facilities Financing Authority:

Oplnlon

We have audited the accompanying financia[ statements of the Puerto Rico lndustriat, Tourist,
Educational, Medical and Environmental Controt Facitities Financing Authority (the "Authority" or
'AF|CA"), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2023 and the statements of
revenues, expenses and change in net position and cash ftons for the year then ended, and the retated
notes to the financial statements, which cottectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements
as [isted in the tabte of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above presents fairty, in all materia[ respects, the
financial position of the Puerto Rico lndustrial, Tourist, Educationat, Medicat and Environmental Control
Facilities Financing Authority as of June 30,2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generatty accepted in the United States
of America.

Basls for Oplnlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generatty accepted in the United States
America. Our responsibitities under those standards are further described on the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Puerto Rico lndustriat, Tourist, Educationat, Medicat and Environmental Controt
Facitities Financing Authority and to meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the retevant
ethica[ requirements relating to our audit. We betieve that the audit ryidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

}lanagement's Responslbility for the Flnanclal Statements

lvlanagement ls responsibte for the preparation and fair presentatiofl of these financiat statements in
accordance with accounting principtes generatty accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, imptementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free fronr material misstatements, whether due to fraud
or error.

ln preparing the financiat statements, management is required to evatuate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial dutbt abqlt the Authority's abltity to
continue as a going concem within one year after the date that the financial statements are available
to be lssued.

Audltor's Reponsibllity for the Audit of the Flnanclal Statemcnts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financial statements as a whote
are free frorn material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasmable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absotute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generalty accepted auditing
standards witl atways detect a materia[ misstatement when lt exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ore resutting from error, as fraud may invotve

Copilol Cenler lSuile 706
239 Arleriol Hoslos Ave.
Son Juon, PR m9l8

l|rcz.dzz.mn
Orct.+gt.os7z
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cotlusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, of the override of internal controt,
misstatements are considered materiat if these is a substantiat tikelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they woutd influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with generatly accepted auditing standards we

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.
ldentify and assess the risk material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to frauds or error, and design and perform audlt procedures responslve to those rlsks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disctosures in the financia[ statements.
Obtain an understanding of intemat controt retevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentatiofl of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cornpany's interna[ controt. Accordingty, we express no such opinion.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabteness of
signlficant accdrnting estimates made by management, as we[ as evaluating the overatl
presentation of the financiat statements.
Conclude, whether in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are requlred to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal contro[ related
matteru that we identified durlng the audit, if any.

Other ilatter

Requi red Supplementory lnformotion

Accountlng principles generatty acceptd in the United States of Amedca require that the lilanagement's
Discusslon and Anatysis on pages 3 through E, and the Schdules of Proportionate Share of Coltective
Total Pension Liabitity and Retated Ratios and of Proportionate Share of Cdlective Total Other
Postemptoyment Beneflt Liabitity and Related Ratios on pages 34 and 35, be presented to supptement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financiat statements,
is requlred by the GASB who considers them to be an essentlal part of financial reporting for ptacing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, econqnic, or historical context. We have
apptied certain timited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and cornparing the information for
consistency Mth management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financlal statements, and other
knovrrtedge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the timited procedures do not provide us with
enough enidence to express an opinlon or provide any assurance.

Quzmdn & Co., C?A [tC,
Certified Public Accountants
tlay 21,2024
San Juan, Puerto Rico

a

a

a

2

rI



PUERTO RICO tNDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATTONAL, MED|CAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
MANAGE AENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

This management's discussion and analysis section ("MD&A") provides a narrative overview
and anatysis of the financial activities of Puerto Rico lndustrial, Tourist, Educationat, Medicat,
and Environmental Control Facitities Financing Authority (the "Authority") for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2023. The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's basic
financial statements. The MD&A is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant
matters, (b) provide an overview of the Authority's financial activities, (c) identify changes in the
Authority's financial position, and (d) identify individual issues or concerns. The fottowing
presentation is by necessity highty summarized and, therefore, to gain a thorough understanding of
the Authority's financial condition, the basic financial statements, notes, and required
supptementary information should be reviewed in their entirety.

The Authority was created to issue revenue bonds and to lend the proceeds thereof to finance
the acquisition, construction, and equipping of industriat, tourist, educationat, medicat, and
environmental control facitities. The Authority charges a ptacement fee based on the face
vatue of the bonds issued. The Authority is exempt from taxation in Puerto Rico.

1. Flnancial Highlights

The Authority's tota[ assets were approximately 5580 thousand as of June 30, 2023,
an increase of 533 thousand or 6% when compared to the prior year. The Authority's
assets consist of its cash batance. The increase in assets of approximatety S33 thousand
is retated to the cash provided by operating activities. Cash received on deposits during
the year of 551 thousand exceeded cash payments for operating expenses of
approximatety 5tA thousand, for a net increase in cash and assets of 533 thousand as
of June 30,2023.

During the fiscat year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority recognized its proportionate
share of the total pension and total other postemptoyment benefits liabitities,
deferred outftows of resources, deferred inftows of resources and pension and other
postemptoyment benefits expenses. The Authority's total tiabitities were
approximatety S718 thousand as of June 30,2023, a decrease of approximatety 5157
thousand or 18% when compared to previous year. The decrease was principatty due
to the Authority recognizing a net reduction in its proportionate share of the total
pension and total other postemptoyment benefit tiabitities. Refer to note 10 for further
information.

Net deficit was reduced by approximatety 5137 thousand or 50%, from 5337 thousand
in fiscal year 2022 to 5200 thousand in fiscal year 2023. The Authority's change in net
position for the year ended June 30, 2023, was positivety impacted by a net benefit in
total operating expenses of approximatety SAO thousand. The benefit mainty
represents a reduction in the Authority's proportionate share of the pension and other
postemptoyment benefits expenses. Refer to note 10 for further information. Atso, the
Authority generated interest income on cash deposits of approximatety S51 thousand,
for a change in net position of 5137 thousand for the year ended June 30, 2023.

a

a

a

There were no condult financing transactions during the year ended June 30, 2023.
However, the Authority was authorized to issue bonds on severat conduit financing

3
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, MEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

transactions subsequent to year end. Refer to subsequent events in the notes to basic
financiat statements.

2. OveMew of the Flnanclal Statements

The financial statements inctude the MD&A, the independent auditors'report, and the basic
financial statements of the Authority. The financial statements atso include notes that
exptain in more detail some of the information in the financia[ statements.

3. Required Flnanclal Statements

The basic financial statements of the Authority report information using accounting methods
simllar to those used by private sector entities. These statements offer short and long-term
financial information about the activities of the Authority.

The first required flnancial statement is the statement of net position. This statement
presents alt of the Authority's assets, tiabitities and deferred outflows and inftows of
resources. Net position is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of
resources and (b) tiabitities and deferred inflows of resources. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Authority's net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financia[ position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The second required financiat statement is the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net position. This statement presents the Authority's revenues, expenses and change in
net position. This statement measures the results of the Authorityl operations over the past
year and can be used to determine whether the Authority has successfutly recovered lts costs
through its user fees and other charges.

The finat required financial statement is the statement of cash ftows. This statement reports
cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing,
and capital and noncapitat financing activities and provides answers to such questions as
where cash came from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance
during the reporting period.

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a futl understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements.

The basic financia[ statements inctude a section of required supptementary information
(unaudited) immediatety fottowing its notes. This section inctudes informatlon of the
proportionate share of cotlective tota[ pension tiabitity and the total other postemployment
benefits tiabitity and related ratios from June 30, 201E, to June 30, 2023.

4. Flnanclal Analysis

The fottowing ls an analysis of the financlal position and changes in the financiat position of
the Authority for fiscal year 2023.
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, MEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
I,iANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudlted)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net (Deficit) Posltion

The Authority's condensed financia[ information from the statement of net (deficit) position
as of June 30, 2023, and 2022, is as fotlows (in thousands):

June 30, Change

zo23 2022 Amount Percentage

Assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Llabllltles

Deferred lnflovs of resources

Net Deflcit

sssoss+t5:s 6%

87 121 (34) -28%

718 875 (1571 -18%

149 130 19 15%

-41%

Total assets, deferred outflows of resources, total liabitities, and deferred inflows of resources
of the Authority as of June 30,2023, amounted to approximatety 5580 thousand, S87 thousand,
5718 thousand, and 5149 thousand, respectivety, for a net deficit of approximatety $200
thousand.

Net deficit was reduced by StfZ thousand or 41%, from 5337 thousand in fisca[ year 2022 to
52@ thousand in fiscal year 2023. The Authority's totat assets consist of its cash batance.
The cash batance increased by S33 thousand as a net result of interest income earned on
cash deposits of approximatety 551 thousand less cash payments for operating expenses
of 518 thousand.

The decrease ln deferred outftows of resources of S34 thousand or 28%, decrease in
tiabitities of 5157 thousand or 18%, and increase in deferred inftows of resources of 519
mittion or 15% were principatty due to the Authority recognizing a reduction in its
proportionate share of the totat pension and total other postemptoyment benefit
tiabitities, deferred outftows of resources, and deferred lnftows of resources during the
year. Total pension and total other postemptoyment benefits diminished by
approximatety 5184 mil,tion when compared to the previous fiscal year. ln addition,
accounts payabte decreased by 57 thousand, from S14 thousand in fiscat year 20ZZ to $7
thousand in fiscal year 2023.

On the other hand, and within liabitities, Pay-Go obtigations for payments made by the
Commonweatth on behatf of the Authority's retirees increased by 5gl thousand,
increasing the related due to the Commonweatth obtigations from 5196 thousand in fiscal
year2022 to 5229 thousand in fisca[ year2023. Atso, the deferred inflows of resources
retated to pensions increased by Stg thousand when recognizing the Authority's
proportionate share of the totat pension associated accounts.
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PUERTO R|CO INDUSTRIAL, TOUR|ST, EDUCATTONAL, MED|CAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rlco)
MANAGEA ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudlted)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position (Deflclt)

Condensed financiat information ofthe statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
(deficit) position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023, and 2022 is as fottows (in
thousands):

June 30, Change

2023 2022 Amount Percent

Opcratlng Rcrrenues

Opcrating Bcncfit (E<penses)

Operating lncorne

Change ln Net Posltlon

NGt Deficlt, Beglnnlng

Net Deficlt, Ending

s sr s 288 s e37)
86 (16) 102

-82x

-638%

137

137

(337)

272

(50e)

(1 35)

272

-50%

-15%

272 (1 35) -50x

s (200) s (337)$ s 137 -41%

The Authority's net deficit was approximatety 5200 thousand as of June 30, 2023, a decrease
of 5137 million or 41% when compared to the prior year. Change in net position decreased
from 5272 thousand during the year ended June 30, 2022, to S'137 thousand during the year
ended June 30, 2023, or a decrease of 5135 thousand or 5O%.

Operating revenues decreased from S2E8 thousand for the year ended June 30, 2022, to 551
thousand for the year ended June 30, 2023, representing a reduction of 5237 thousand or 82%.

As discussed previousty, during theyearended June 30, 2023, theAuthoritydid not participate
in bond issuances transactions. Therefore, no placement fees were cottected during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 (as opposed to the prior year, when placement fees of
approximatety 5287 thousand were cottected retated to a conduit financing transaction to
finance certain heatth related projects). Operating revenues during fiscal year ended June
30, 2023 represented interest income on cash deposits.

Operating expenses decreased from 516 thousand for the year ended June 30, 2022, to a net
benefit of 586 thousand for the year ended June 30, 2023. The reduction of approximatety
5102 thousand resutted mainty from the proportionate share expense of pension and other
postemployment benefits during fiscal year 2023 being tess by approximatety S101 thousand
than the proportionate share expense recognized in fisca[ year2022.

Debt Admlnlstration - Conduit Debt

The Authority's main operations consist of issuing revenue bonds, known as AFICA Bonds,
where the net cash proceeds are then loaned to the owners of etigibte projects, as defined
in the Act and regutations of the Authority, to finance educationat, medica[, environmentat,
agricuttural, tourist, commerciat, and industria[ projects. The AFICA Bonds are considered
conduit debt and, therefore, neither these bonds nor the retated loans granted by the
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, MEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unlt of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rlco)
MANAGEl ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Authority are presented in the accompanying basic financial statements. For each new AFICA
Bonds, the Authority cottects a ptacement fee. The Authority earns revenues from the
collection of those placement fees, which generatty represents 1% of the face value of the
bonds issued, except for bonds issued to finance educationat, medicat, or environmental
controt facitities or other projects otherwise etigibte to be financed in the U.5. tax-exempt
bond market, for which the ptacement fee charged is one half percentage (0.5%).

The AFICA Bonds and underlying toans are timited obligations of the Authority, and they are
not guaranteed by the Govemment of Puerto Rico or any of its agencies, pubtic corporations,
and instrumentatities. Repayment and collatera[ support of the AFICA Bonds and loans is the
[ega[ and contractual responsibility of the corporate entities to which the Authority lends the
cash proceeds of the Authority bonds. Att Authority bond issuances are subject to the
consideration and approvat by the Board of Directors of the Authority, the Puerto Rico Fiscal
Agency, and Financiat Advisory Authority and, when appticable, the Financial Oversight and
Management Board for Puerto Rico.

5. Currently Known Facts and Events

Authorization for AFICA Bonds lssuances

Auxilio Mutuo Group

On November 9,2073, the Financiat Ovenight and Management Board for Puerto Rico (the
"Oversight Board") authorized AFICA to issue a two-year private-ptacement of taxabte bonds
in an aggregate principal amount up to 535 mittion ("Series 2023 Bonds") as a pass-through
for the benefit of the Sociedad Espafiola de Auitio Mutuo y Beneficiencia de Puerto Rico (the
"Corporation") and Hospital Espafrol Auxitio Mutuo de Puerto Rico, lnc. (the "Hospitat" and,
together with the Corporation, the "Obtigated Group"). The Obtigated Group was dectared
on September 29,2023 the successful bidder to purchase the hospitat previousty known as
HllvlA San Pabto-Bayam6n (the "Bayam6n Hospitat") pursuant to a U.S. Bankruptcy Court case.
The transaction closed in December 2023.

The Obtigated Group used the proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds to: (1) purchase assets and
related properties of the Bayam6n Hospital from Grupo Hllr{A San Pabto, lnc. ($18,000,000);
(2) partiatty finance immediate substantial repairs and lmprovements to the Bayam6n Hospital
(512,021,375); and (3) fund operating expenses and reserves for financing and tegat costs of
the Series 2023 Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds are not guaranteed by, or otherwise the
obtigation of, the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico or any agency, instrumentality or pubtic
corporatlon thereof, and repayment and collateral of the Series 2023 Bonds is provided
exctusivety by the Obtigated Group.

San Juan Crulse Port Terminal

On January 11,2024, the Oversight Board authorized AFICA to issue up to 5235 mittion of
taxabte and tax-exempt bonds to finance capital improvements and transaction costs
retated to the Pubtic Private Partnership Agreement dated August 15,2022 (the "P3
Agreement") between the Puerto Rico Ports Authority ("PRPA") and San Juan Cruise Port
LLC ("SJCP") to operate the San Juan cruise terminats for a 30-year period.
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, MEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

The Project consists of the design, construction, renovation, and equipping of various
facilities at the San Juan Cruise Port Terminal and certain facilities functionalty retated and
subordinate thereto, inctuding the SJCP's acquisition of certain property interests therein.
The transaction ctosed in February 2024.

The proceeds from the sate of the bonds were used to make a loan to SJCP to (a) pay alt or
a portion of the cost of the Project described above, (b) make a concession payment to the
PRPA as required by the P3 agreement, (c) pay certain operating expenses and reserves for
financing and [ega[ costs in connection with the issuance of the AFICA bonds.

Repayment of the Bonds and the AFICA toans wi[[ be made sotety by SJCP and the retated
cottaterat. The Bonds and the AFICA loans are not guaranteed by, or otherwise have recourse
to, the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico or any governmental agency, pubtic corporation, or
instrumentatity of the Government of Puerto Rico.

AES Puerto Rico Bonds Exchance Transaction

On March 1, 2024, the Oversight Board authorized AFICA to issue up to 5115 mittion of new
senior bonds in exchange for the defaulted 5145 mittion ln outstanding Cogeneration Facitity
Revenue Bonds, 2000 Series A, which proceeds were originatty toaned to AES Puerto Rico. L. P.

(AES-PR). The transaction, which ctosed in March 2024, reduced AFICA's outstandlng debt
issuance by approximatety 28% and provided AES-PR an emergency bridge financing of 523
mittion for operatlonat needs and capitat expenditures.

The AFICA AES-PR bonds are not guarante"d by, or otherwise the obtigation of AFICA, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico or any agency, instrumentality, or pubtic corporation thereof,
and are nonrecourse to AFICA, the Commonweatth, and a[[ other governmental entities.

6. Request for lnformatlon

This financial report is designed to provide atl interested with a general overuiew of the
Authority's finances and to enhance the Authority's accountabitity for the resources it
manages. lf you have questions about this report or need additlonal financial information,
contact the Puerto Rico lndustriat, Tourist, Educationat, Medicat, and EnvironmentaI Controt
Facil,ities Financing Authority, P.O. Box 42A01, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 00940-2001.
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, MEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
STATEMENT OF NET DEFICIT

JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current Assets:
Cash

Total current assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension related
Other postemptoyment benef i ts

Totat deferred outflous of resources

Total assets and deferred outftours of resources

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current Liabllltles:
Due to Puerto Rico Fiscat Agency and Financiat Advisory Authority
Due to Commonweatth of Puerto Rico

Total other pos tem ptoyment benefits llabi tity
Totat pension tiabltity

Total current tiabititles
Non-Current Llabllltles:
Totat other pos tem ptoyment benefits tiabi tity
Total pension tiabitity

Total non-current tiabitities

Totat liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources - pension retated

Totat l,iabilties and deferred inftows of resources

NET DEFICIT - unrestricted

s 580,326

580,326

85,706
1,ZOO

86,906

667,232

7,132
2?8,806

1,20O

31,81E
768,956

1O,917

437,968
448,885

717,841

149,25O

867,O91

5 (199,859)

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the basic financial statements.
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, MEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET DEFICIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES

lnterest income on deposits
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Pension expense and other postemployment benefits (benefit)
Other operating expenses

Totat Operating Expenses (Benefit)

Operating lncome

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET DEFICIT - Beginning of year

NET DEFICIT - End of year

5 51,225
51,225

197,336)
11,464

(85,872)

137,O97

137,O97

(336,956)

s (1 99,859)

-The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements
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PUERTO RICO tNDUSTR|AL, TOURIST, EDUCATTONAL, MED|CAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rlco)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash payments for operating expenses

Cash received from interest on deposits

Totat cash provided by operating activities

S

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH - Beginning of year

CASH - End of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating lncome

Adjustments to reconcite operating lncome to net cash provided by
operating activities and changes in assets and tiabitities:

Decrease in deferred outftows of resources

lncrease in due to Fiscat Agenqy and Financiat Advisory Authority
lncrease in due to Commonweatth of Puerto Rico

lncrease in deferred inftows of resources

Decrease in totat other postemptoyment benefits tiabitity
Decrease in totat penslon tiabitity

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the basic financial statements

(18,132)

51,225

33,093

33,093

547,233

s 580,326

s 137,O97

34,222

(6,668)

33,018

19,505

(1,231)

(182,850)

s 33,093
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PUERTO R|CO |NDUSTR|AL, TOURIST, EDUCATTONAL, MED|CAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unlt of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The Puerto Rico lndustriat, Tourist, Educationat, Medicat, and Environmental Controt
Facilities Financing Authority (the "Authority" or "AF|CA") is a component unit of the
Commonweatth of Puerto Rico (the "Commonweatth") and an affitiate of the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico ("GDB"), created by Act No. 121 of the Legistature of
the Commonweatth on June 27,1977, as amended (the "Act"). AFICA, white a tegatty
separate entity from the Commonwealth, meets the discretety presented component unit
criteria estabtished by GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity, as amended, to be
reported in the basic financial statements of the Commonweatth.

Subsequent to the discontinuance of operations of GDB, management, administrative, and
accounting support seryices are provided to the Authority by the Puerto Rico Fiscal Agenqy
and Financiat Advisory Authority ("FAFAA").

The Authority was created to issue revenue bonds and to lend the proceeds thereof to
finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of industrial, tourist, educationat,
medical, and environmental control facitities. The Authority charges a placement fee
based on the face vatue of the bonds issued.

2. SUl,lltARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Authority are presented in
conformity with U.S. Generalty Accepted Accounting Principtes ("U.S. GAAP"), for
governments as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB").

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position and the
resutts of operations of the Authority as a whote.

Fotlowing is a description of the Authority's most significant accounting poticies:

lvleasurement Focus ond Basis of Accounting-The Authority's financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accruat basis of
accounting. Operating revenues are recorded when earned and operating expenses are
recorded when incurred, regardtess of the timing of retated cash flow. The Authority's
ptacement fee income is recognized upon the issuance of the bonds. Revenues and
expenses not meeting these criteria are reported as non-operating revenues or expenses.

The statement of net position (deficit) presents the Authority's assets, liabitities, and
deferred outftows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net
position(deficit). Net position(deficit) may be reported in two categories:

a) Restrlcted component- consists of restricted assets reduced by tiabitities retated
to those assets. Restrictions are either externatty imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, and the tike, or imposed by taw through constitutional provisions or
enabting legislation.

b) Unrestricted component- consists of net amount of the assets and tiabilities that
L2



PUERTO R|CO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, i EDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

do not meet the definition of the preceding category. Unrestricted component
of net position (deficit) often is designated, to indicate that management does
not consider them to be availabte for general operations. Unrestricted
component of net position (deficit) often has constraints on use that are imposed
by management, but such constraints may be removed or modified.

The statement of reyenues, expenses, and changes in net position (deficit) demonstrates
the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are ctearty identifiabte within a
specific function.

The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in
cash resutting from operating, investing, and capital and noncapita[ financial activities,
and provides answers to such questions as where cash came from, what was cash used
for, and what was the change in the cash batance during the reporting period.

Use of Estimates-The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and tiabllities and disctosure of contingent assets and tiabitities at the
date of the financiat statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual resutts coutd differ from those estimates.

Cosh-Cash inctudes deposits maintained by the Authority in interest and non-interest-
bearlng accounts in commerciat banks.

Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources-ln addition to assets, the statement of net
deficit witl sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement etement, deferred outftows of resources, represents a
consumption of net deficit that appties to a future period(s) and so wilt not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then.

ln addition to tiabitities, the statement of net deficit witl sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inftows of resources. This separate financial statement etement,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net deficit that appties to a

future period(s) and so witl not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) untit
that time.

Revenue Bonds and Related Loans-The Authority finances industrial (as defined by the
Act, which includes commerciat, research, tourist, and agricuttural projects), medicat,
educationat, and environmental control projects, by selting timited obtigation revenue
bonds in private ptacement or on the open pubtic bond markets (the "Authority Financing").
The proceeds of the Authority Financing are loaned by the Authority to the obtigor's project
as per the terms and conditions of the Authority Financing. The loan proceeds are, in turn,
used by the Obtigor to pay for the costs of the devetopment of the project. The financing
agreement catts for payments of principat and lnterest by the project owner to the
Authority Financing through a trustee. lnterest and principal payments are apptied to debt
seryice on the bonds and to any other retated financing costs.
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PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATTONAL, MED|CAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORIW

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue bonds issued by the Authority are considered conduit debt and, therefore,
neither these bonds nor the related toans granted by the Authority are presented in the
accompanying basic financial statements.

Revenue Recognition-Ptacement fees are recognized as revenues in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and change in net deficit upon issuance of bonds. Refer to Note 7 to
the basic financial statements for further information regarding the ptacement fees.

AccountingforPensions Cost- EffectiveJuty 1, 2017,a new "pay-as-you-go" ("Pay-Go")
system was enacted into law by Act No. 106 of 7017 ("Act 106-2017"1, significantty
reforming the defined benefit ptan (the "Ptan") of the Emptoyees' Retirement Sptem of
the Government of the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico ("ERS"). Under the Pay-Go system,
emptoyers' contributions and other contributions ordered by speciat laws were atl
etiminated and substantiatty att the assets of the Plan were liquidated, and its proceeds
transferred to the Commonweatth's General Fund for payment of pension benefits.
Therefore, since the enactment of Act 106-2017, the Commonweatth's General Fund
makes direct payments to the pensioners and is then reimbursed for those payments by
the participating emptoyers.

As a result of the imptementation of the Pay-Go system, the Authority started to apptying
the guidance of GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
and Retated Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement No 68, an
amendments of Certain Provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and 68. GASB Statement
No. 73 maintains the "accrual basis" modet under Statement 68, where then Net Pension
Liabitity is actuariatty determined. GASB Statement No. 73 requires a tiabitity for pension
obtigations, known as the Total Pension Liabitity, to be recognized on the batance sheets
of participating employers. Changes in Total Pension Liabitity are immediatety recognized
as pension expenses. fu Act 106-2017 etiminated atl contribution requirements for the
Ptan and converted it into a Pay-Go system. The corresponding actuarial catcutation of
the total pension tiabitity and retated accounts changed to one based on benefit payments
rather than contributions. As a result, the Authority recognizes a Total Pension Liability,
pension expenses, and related accounts, accordingty. Further detaits on the accounting
for pension costs and the impact of its adoption are disctosed in Note 10.

The Central Government and its component units are considered to be one emptoyer and
are ctassified for financiat reporting purposes as a singte emptoyer defined benefit
pension plan. Other emptoyers atso participate in the Ptan. Because certain emptoyers
that are component units of the Commonweatth, such as the Authority, prepare individuat
financiat statements, a proportionate share of pension retated amounts is determined for
these emptoyers. GASB Statement No. 73 requires that such proportionate share should
be consistent with the manner in which amounts that are paid as benefits come due are
determined. The proportionate share as of each measurement date is based on the ratio
of each agency and component unit's actual benefit payments to the totat actual benefit
payments paid during the year ending on the measurement date.

Emptoyee Retirement System (ERS) etected to use Juty 1 of each fiscal year as the
measurement date for financial information. Based on this etection, the June 30,2022,
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actuarial measurement data was used for the pension benefits financial reporting
recognition as of and for the fisca[ year ended June 30, 2023.

The Authority's annual pension benefit (expense) for the year ended June 30, 2023,
amounted to 597,405 and the totat pension tiabitity as of June 30, 2023, amounted to
approximatety 5469,786. Disctosures required under GASB Statement No. 73 can be found
in Note 10.

Other Postemployment Benefits- The Authority accounts for postemployment benefit
costs other than pensions (OPEB) under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financiat Reporting for Postemptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as
amended by GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, which also requires additional
reporting and disctosures for OPEB benefits provided through the ERS sponsored Medical
lnsurance Ptan Contribution (ERS MIPC). GASB Statement No. 75 requires a tiability for
OPEB obtigations, known as the Net OPEB Liabitity (Totat OPEB Liabitity for unfunded plans),
to be recognized on the balance sheets of participating employers. Changes in the Net
OPEB Liabitlty (Totat OPEB Liabitity for unfunded ptans) are immediatety recognized as
OPEB expenses.

GASB Statement No. 75 emptoys an "accruat basis" modet, where the totat OPEB obtigation
(actuaria[y determined) is compared to the plan net position and the difference represents
the Net OPEB Liabitity (Totat OPEB Liabitity for unfunded ptans). Further detaits on the
accounting for OPEB costs are disctosed in Note 1 1.

The Centra[ Government and its component units are considered to be one emptoyer.
Other emptoyers also participate in the ERS OPEB Plan. Because certain emptoyers that
are component units of the Commonweatth, such as the Authority, prepare individuat
financial statements, a proportionate share or OPEB expense is determined for these
emptoyers. Statement No. 75 requires that such proportionate share should be consistent
with the manner in which amounts that are paid as benefits come due are determined.
The proportionate share as of each measurement date is based on the ratio of each agency
and component unit's actual benefit payments to the total actual benefit payments paid
during the year ending on the measurement date.

Because att participants in the ERS OPEB plan are inactive, there are no deferred inftows
and outftows as any changes due to changes in actuarial assumptions or economic or
demographic gains and losses are recognized immediately during the measurement year.
However, a deferred outflow has been recognized onty for the amount of the benefit
payments made by the Commonwealth on behalf of the Authority subsequent to the
measurement date, of 51,200.

ERS etected to use Juty 'l of each fiscal year as the measurement date for financial
information. Based on this etection, the June 30,2m| actuarial measurement data was

used for the OPEB financiat reporting recognition as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30,2023.

The Authority's annual OPEB expense for the year ended June 30, 2023, amounted to 569
and the OPEB tiabitity as of June 30, 2023, amounted to approximatety 51 2, 1 17. Disctosures
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required under GASB Statement No. 75 can be found in Note 11

GASB Statement No. 75 requires certain disctosures if an actuariatly determined
contribution has been calcutated.

New Accounting Stondards Adopted and Accounting Pronouncements lssued but Not Yet
Effective

New Accounting Standords Adopted

During the fisca[ year ended on June 30, 2023, certain governmental accounting
pronouncements became effective, none of which had any impact in the resutts of the
operations, or in the presentation of the financial statements of the Authority. The Authority
earty adopted GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligotions during fiscat year 2022. Refer
to Note 8 to the basic financial statements for disclosure required by GASB Statement No. 91.

Accounting Pronouncements lssued but Not Yet Effective

a

a

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparabitity in accounting and financia[ reporting and to improve the
consistency of authoritative titerature by addressing (1 ) practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements
and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financiat guarantees. The requirements
retated to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscat years beginning after June
15,20?2. The requirements related to financiat guarantees and the ctassification and
reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.

GASB Statement No. l(fr, Accounting Chonges and Error Correctlons-an omendment
of GASB Statement No. 62. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance
accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error
corrections to provide more understandabte, retiabte, retevant, consistent, and
comparabte information for making declsions or assessing accountability. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 1 5,
2023. Eartier apptication is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is
to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the
recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is
achieved by atigning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified
model and by amending certain previousty required disctosures. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023.
Eartier appllcation is encouraged.

GASB Stotement No. 102, Certain Risk Dlsclosures. The objective of this Statement is
to provide users of govemment financial statements with essential information about
risk related to a govemment's vutnerabilities due to certain concentrations or
constraints. This Statements defines a concentration as a tack of diversity retated to
an aspect of a significant inflow of resources or outflours of resources. A constraint is
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a limitation imposed on a government by an external party or by formal action of the
government's highest [eve[ of decision-making authority. Concentrations and
constraints may [imit a govemment's ability to acquire resources or controt spending.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2024, and a[[ reporting periods thereafter. Earlier apptication is
encouraged.

lrtanagement is evatuating the impact that these Statements witl have on the Authority's
basic financial statements.

3. CASH AND DEPOSITS

Custodia[ credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure of a depository financia[
institution, the Authority witt not be able to recover deposits or witl not be able to recover
cottatera[ deposits that are in possession of an outside party. The Commonweatth requires
that public funds deposited in commerciat bank in Puerto Rico be futly cottateratized for
the amounts deposited in excess of federat depository insurance. Att securities ptedged as
cotlateral are held by bank in the Authority's name.

Deposits maintained by the Authority as of June 30,?:023, represent the batance of interest
and non-interest-bearing accounts in commercial bank. The tabte presented betow
disctoses the [eve[ of custodial credit risk assumed by the Authority as of June 30, 2023. As

of June 30,2023, none of the Authority's deposits are uninsured and uncottateralized, as
fottows:

Carrying Deposltory Amount unlnsured
Amount Bank Balance and uncollaterlzed

Cash s 580,326 S sao,lz6 S

4, DEPOSTTS CLAtA,t RECETVABLE FROM PUBLTC ENTITY TRUST (PET)

On August 10,2018, GDB commenced an action to restructure certain of lts indebtedness
pursuant to the GDB Quatifying Modification under Titte Vl of the Puerto Rico Oversight
lvlanagement and Economic Stabitity Act ("PROMESA"). The United States District Court for
the District of Puerto Rico approved GDB Quatifying Modification on November 6, 2018, and
the GDB Quatifying Modification became effective on November 29,2018.

Pursuant to Act No. 109-2017, atso known as the Government Development Bank for Puerto
Rico Debt Restructuring Act (the "GDB Restructuring Act") and the terms of the GDB

Quatifylng Modification, ctaims on account of deposits hetd by the Commonwealth and
other pubtic entities, including the Authority, were exchanged for beneficiat units in the
Pubtic Entity Trust created pursuant to the GDB Restructuring Act. Specificatty, uhder the
provisions of the GDB Restructuring Act, on the closing date of the GDB Quatifying
lrlodiflcation, i.e., November 29,2018 (the "Ctosing Date"), the batance of liabitities owed
between the Commonweatth and its agencles, instrumentalities and affiliates, inctuding
the Authority (each a "Non-Municipal Govemment Entity") and GDB was determined by
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apptying the outstanding batance of any deposits hetd at GDB in a Non-Municipal
Government Entity's name against the outstanding batance of any loan of such Non-
Municipat Government Entity owed to GDB, or of any bond or note of such Non-Municipat
Government Entity hetd by GDB as of such date. Those Non-Municipal Government Entities
having net ctaims against GDB, after giving effect to the foregoing adjustment, received
their pro rata share of interests in the PET, which was deemed to be in futl satisfaction of
any and a[[ ctaims such Non-Municipal Goyemment Entity may have had against GDB.

The Authority hetd deposits at GDB of approximatety 59.5 mitlion. A custodiat credit toss
on these deposits was recorded in previous years resulting in a reserye of the entire
batance. fu a resutt of the execution of the GDB Quatifying Modification, the Authority
received beneficial units of the PET in exchange for the S9.5 mittion in deposits hetd at
GDB. The units received from the PET and the custodial credit loss were reclassified as a
deposit ctaim receivabte from the PET and into an atlowance for doubtful accounts,
respectively, with a net carrying amount of zero.

The Authority's recovery on account of this deposit ctaim witt depend upon the recovery
ultimately received by the Pubtic Entity Trust on account of the PET assets as a resutt units
received from the PET are futty reserved. The ctaim receivabte and its corresponding
attowance as of June 30,2023, was as fotlows:

Balance as of
June 30, 2023

Clalm
Allowance Net Carrying Value

Ctaim receivabte 5 9,503,794 5 (9,503,794) S

5. DUE TO COI,II ONWEALTH

The Commonweatth has made Pay-Go pension retated and other postemployment benefits
payments on behalf of the Authorlty amounting to approximatety 5220,906 and 57,900,
respectively. Due to Commonweatth has been recognized in the financial statements as
of June 30,2023, amounting to 5228,806.

6. RELATIONSHIP WITH FAFAA

The Puerto Rico Emergency Moratorium and Flnancial Rehabilitation Act, Act No. 21-2016
(the "lvloratorium Act"), as amended, created FAFAA as an independent public corporation
to assume GDB's role as fiscal agent, financiat advisor and reporting agent for the
Commonweatth and its instrumentatities. Act No. 2 of 2017 subsequentty repeated and
reptaced the provisions of the Moratorium Act regarding FAFAA. FAFAA has atso been
assigned the task of overseeing matters related to the restructuring or adjustment of the
Commonweatth's financial liabilities, coordinating tiabitity management or other
transactions with respect to such obtigations, and ensuring comptiance with fiscal ptans
and budges approved by the Oversight Board pursuant PROMESA.
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During the year ended June 30, 2023, FAFAA provided certain management and
administrative services to the Authority at no cost, however, a memorandum of
understanding was entered into with FAFAA during fiscal year 70231o cover and reimburse
certain operating expenses.

7. PLACEMENT FEES

The Authority generally charges a ptacement fee of one percent (1%) of the face vatue of
bond issued or as deemed appropriate for the specific issue, except for bonds issued to
finance educationat, medicat, or environmental control facilities or other projects
otherwise etigibte to be placed in the U.S. tax-exempt bond market, for which the
ptacement fee charged is one hatf percentage (0.501[).

There were no bond issuances during the year ended June 30, 2023, as such, no placement
fees were charged.

8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND NO COMA,IITMENT DEBT

From time to time, the Authority issues revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to
private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of transportation,
environmentat, industriat, tourism, educational, and commercial facilities, deemed to be
in the public interest and that are expected to provide benefits to the citizens of Puerto
Rico.

The revenue bonds issued by the Authority are speciat and timited obtigations of the
Authority and, except to the extent payabte from bond proceeds and investments
thereof, are payabte sotety from and secured by a pledge and assignment of the amounts
payabte under the toan agreements between the Authority and the borrowers. ln some
cases, payment of principat and interest on revenue bonds may be further secured by
guarantees or letters of credit. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities is retained by the prlvate sector entity served by the bond issuance.

Neither the Authority nor the Commonwealth is obtigated in any manner for the
repayment of these revenue bonds. The revenue bonds are considered conduit debt and
do not constitute a debt or a ptedge of the good faith and credit of the Authority or the
Commonweatth or any potiticat subdivision thereof. ln addition, no commitments beyond
the coltaterat, the payments from the private-sector entities, and maintenance of the tax-
exempt status of the conduit debt obtigation were extended by the Authority for any of
those bonds. Accordingty, the bonds are not reported as long-term tiabilities in the basic
flnancial statements of the Authority.

ln connection wlth the issuance of revenue bonds, the Authority enters lnto trust
agreements, whereby the Authority assigns and ptedges to the trustees, for the benefit
of the hotders of the revenue bonds: (1) att amounts receivable by the Authority in
repayment of the amounts due under the loan agreements; (2) any rights, title, and
interest of the Authority in the proceeds derived from the issuance of the revenue bonds
and of any securities in which moneys in any fund or account created by the trust
agreements or toan agreements are invested and the proceeds derived therefrom; and
(3) the Authorlty's rights, title, and interest in and to the loan agreements, subject to the
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Authority's retention of certain rights, inctuding the right to cottect moneys payabte to
the Authority.

As of June 30, 2023, the Authority had approximatety S518.5 million in outstanding AFICA
bonds distributed as fottows:

REVENUE BONDS Face Amount BalanceJune 3O, 2023

Com mercia[\ I ndustrial

Educationat

Medicat

Tourist

Deferred outflows of resources

354,599,745 s
277,595,OO0

126,740,0OO

56,355,000

s 270,093,600

133,173,111

70,360,000

44,835,0O0

Total s 815,289,745 s 518,461,711

9. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The activity in deferred outftows and inflows of resources as of June 30, 2023, is
summarized as fottows:

Balance as of
June 30,

zo22 Addltlons Reductlons

Balance as of
Junc 30, 2023

Penslon related

Other postemfloyment benefiu
Totat

Deferred lnflows of reeources

Pension retated

Totat

$ 119,828

1,300
s 31,8't8

1,20O

S (65,9,10)

(1,300)

85,706

1,2@
s

5 121,128 S 33,018 S (67,24p1 S 86,906

5 129,745 S 19,505 5 s 149,250

5 129,745 S 19,505 S s 149,250

10. ET PLOYEES RETIREIIENT SYSTEi,I OF THE GOVERNMENT OF THE COI,II ONWEALTH OF
PUERTO RICO

Plan Descrlptlon

The Defined Beneflt Pension Plan for Participants of the Emptoyees' Retirement System of
the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the "Commonweatth") (the "Plan")
was created pursuant to Act No. 447 on A{ay 15, 1951, as amended ("Act No. 447"1 to
provide pension and other benefits to retired employees of the Commonwealth, its pubtic
corporations, and municipatities. Prior to the enactment of Act No. '106 of August 23,2017
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("Act No. 1(X-20'17"), the Ptan was administered by the Emptoyees' Retirement System of
the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the "System"). Effective Juty 1,
2017, all employer contributions were etiminated pursuant to Act No. 106-2017 and the
Commonweatth imptemented a "pay-as-you-go" ("Pay-Go") system for the payment of
pensions. Atso pursuant to Act No. 106-2017, the System was required to liquidate its assets
and transfer the net proceeds to the Department of Treasury of the Commonwealth to pay
pension benefits.

Pension Benefits

The benefits provided to the Ptan participants are estabtished by Commonweatth law and
may be amended onty by the Legistature with the Govemor's approvat, or by court decision.

The Modified Eight Amended Titte lll Joint Ptan of Adjustment of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico (Commonweatth Ptan of Adjustment), confirmed by the U.S. District Court for
the District of Puerto Rico on January 18,2022, etiminated several benefits to certain Plan
participants. ln summary, participants within the System 2@0 ptan and Act 3 members, as
further exptained betow, who were not in payment status as of March 15, 2022, were
transferred out from Plan benefits. Atso, the Commonweatth Ptan of Adjustment etiminated
future cost of tiving adjustments, as wetl as benefits to active members under Act 127-
1958 (members in high-risk positlons).

Ptan participants within the System 2000 includes members hired on or after January 1,
20@, and on or before June 30, 2013 (defined contributlon program). At[ regutar emptoyees
hired for the first time on or after Juty 1, 2013, and former employees who participated in
the defined benefit program and the System 2000 program, and were rehired on or after
Juty 1, 2013, became members of the Contributory Hybrid Program as a condition to their
employment. ln addition, emptoyees who at June 30, 2013, were participants of previous
programs became part of the Contributory Hybrid Program on July 1, 2013. Atso, Act No. 3
of Aprit 4, 20'13 (Act No. 3 of 2013) froze atl retirement benefits accrued through June 30,
2013 under the defined benefit program and, thereafter, att future benefits accrued under
the defined contribution formula used for the System 2000 program participants.

Therefore, plan provisions are different for the other two groups of members who entered
the Ptan prior to Juty 1, 2013, as described betow:

Members of Act No. 447 are generalty those members hired before Aprit 1, 1990
(contributory, defined benefit program).

Members of Act No. 1 of February 16, 1990 (Act No. 1) are generatty those members
hired on or after April 1, 1990, and on or before December 3'1,1999 (contributory,
defined benefit program).

(a) SeMce Retlrement Ellglblllty Requlrements

(1) Eligtbility for Act No. 447 hlembers - Act No. 447 members who were eligibte to
retire as of June 30, 2013, continue to be etigibte to retire at any time. Prior to
Juty 1, 2013, Act No.47 members could retire upon (1) attainment of age 55 with
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25 years of credited seMce, (2) attainment of age 58 with 10 years of credited
service, (3) any age with 30 years of credited seryice, (41for Pubtic Officers in High
Risk Positions (the Commonweatth Potice and Firefighter Corps, the Municipal Potice
and Firefighter Corps and the Custody Office Corps), attainment of age 50 with 25
years of credited service, and (5), for Mayors of municipalities, attainment of age
50 with 8 years of credited service as a Mayor. ln addition, Act No. 447 members
who attained 30 years of credited service by December 31,2013, are etigibte to
retire at any time.

Act No. 447 members who were not eligibte to retire as of June 30, 2013, and did
not attain 30 years of credited service by December 31, 2013, are etigibte to retire
with 10 years of credited service upon attalnment of the retirement etigibitity age
shown in the table below.

Date of blrth
Attained age as of

June 30, 2013

Retirement
ellglblllty age

Juty 1, 1957 or [ater 55 or less

July 1, 1956 to June 30, 1957 56

Before Juty 1, 1956 57 and up

ln addition to the requirements of the tabte above, Act No. 447 Pubtic Officers in High
Risk Positlons who were not etigibte to retire as of June 30, 2013 and did not attain 30
years of credited service by December 31,2013, are ellgible to retire directty from active
service upon the attainment of age 55 with 30 years of credited service.

(2) Eliglbtltty for Act No. t hlembers - Act No. 1 members who were etigible to retire
as of June 30, 2013, continue to be etigibte to retire at any time. Prior to July 1,
2013, Act No. 1 members could retire upon (1) attainment of age 55 with 25 years
of credited service, (2) attainment of age 65 with 10 years of credited seMce, (3)
for Pubtic Officen in High-Risk Positions, any age with 30 years of credited service,
and (4) for Mayors, attainment of age 50 with 8 years of credited service as a lrlayor.

Act No. 1 members who were not etigibte to retire as of June 30, 2013, are eligibte
to retire upon attainment of age 65 with 10 years of credited service. ln addition,
Act No. 1 Pubtic Officers in High-Risk Positions who were not eligible to retire as of
June 30,2013, are etigibte to retire directty from active seMce upon the
attainment of age 55 with 30 years of credited seryice.

(b) Compulsory Retlrement

Att Act No. 417 and Act No. 1 Pubtic Officers in High-Risk Positions must retire upon
attainment of age 58 and 30 years of credlted service. A two-year extension may be
requested by the member from the Superintendent of the Puerto Rico Police, the Chief
of the Firefighter Corps, or supeMsing authority as appticabte.

61
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59

22



PUERTO RICO INDUSTRIAL, TOURIST, EDUCATIONAL, AAEDICAL, AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL FACILITT ES FINANCI NG AUTHORITY

(A Component Unlt of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rlco)
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEiAENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

(c) Service Retirement Annulty Benefits

An annuity payabte for the lifetime of the member equal to the annuitized value of the
batance in the Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account at the time of retirement
ptus, for Act No. 447 and Act No. 1 members, the accrued benefit determined as of Junl
30, 2013. lfthe balance in the Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account is 510,000
or [ess, it shatt be paid as a lump sum instead of as an annuity.

(1) Accrued Benefit as of June 30, 2013, for Act No. 447 hlembers - The accrued benefit as
of June 30, 2013, shatl be determined based on the average compensation, as defined,
for Act No. 447 members, the years of credited service, and the attained age of the
member atl as of June 30, 2013. For Act No. 447 Mayors, the highest compensation, as
defined, as a lrlayor is determined as of June 30, 2013.

lf the Act No. 447 member had at least 30 years of credited seMce as of June 30, 2013,
the accrued benefit equats 65% of average compensation if the member was under age
55 as of June 30, 2013, or75% of average compensation if the member was at least age
55 as of June 30, 201 3. For participants setecting to coordinate with socia[ security (the
Coordination Ptan), the benefit is re-catcutated at the Sociat Security Retirement Age
(SSRA), as defined, as 1.5% of average compensation up to 56,6@ muttiptied by years
of credited service, up to 30 years, ptus 65% |.7596 if member was at least age 55 as of
June 30, 2013) of average compensation in excess of 56,600.

lf the Act No. 447 member had less than 30 years of credited seryice as of June 30, 2013,
and attains 30 years of credited seMce by December 31, 2013, the accrued benefit
equats 55% of average compensation if the member was under age 55 as of June 30, 2013
or 60% of average compensation if the member was at least age 55 as of June 30, 2013. For
particlpants selecting the Coordination Plan, the benefit is re-catculated at SSRA as 1.5*i
of average compensation up to 56,600 muttiplled by years of credited service, up to 30
years, ptus 55% 160.96 if member was at least age 55 as of June 30, 2013) of average
compensation in excess of 56,600. Member contributions received from Act No. 447
memberu etiglbte for this transitory benefit during the period beginning Juty 1, 2013 and
ending upon the attainment of 30_years of credited service are considered pre-Juty 1,2013
contributions; thecontributions tothe Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account
begin after the member attains 30 years of credited seMce.

lf the Act No. 447 member had tess than 30 years of credited service as of December
31,2013, the accrued benefit equats 1.5% of average compensation muttiplied by years
of credited seMce up to 20 years, ptus 2% of average compensation muttiplied by years
of credited service in excess of 20 years. The marcimum benefit is 75% of average
compensation. Except for the Commonweatth Police and Commonweatth Firefighters,
the benefit is actuariatty reduced for each year payment commences prior to age 58.
For participants setecting the Coordination Plan, the basic benefit is re-catcutated at
SSRA as 1% of average compensation up to 56,600 muttlptied by years of credited seryice
up to 20 years, ptus 1.5% of average compensation up to S6,6m muttiptied by years of
credited service in excess of 20 years, ptus 1.5% of average compensation in excess of
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56,600 muttiptied by years of credited seMce up to 20 years, plus 7.U6 of average
compensation in excess of 56,600 muttiplied by years of credited service in excess of
20 years. Except for Potice and Firefighters, the benefit is actuarially reduced for each
year payment commences prior to age 58.

For Act No. 44T lrlayors with at teast 8 years of credited service as a mayor, the accrued
benefit witt not be less than 5% of highest compensation, as defined, as a Mayor for
each year of credited service as a Mayor up to 10 years, ptus 1.5% of highest
compensation as lvlayor for each year of non-Mayoral credited service up to 20 years,
ptus 2.0ff of highest compensation as lvlayor for each year of non-Mayorat'credited
service in excess of 20 years. Non-lvlayoral credited seMce inctudes service earned as
a Mayor in excess of 10 years. lvlaximum benefit is 90ff of highest compensation as a
lrlayor.

(21 Accrued Beneflt os of June 30, 2013, for Act No. I llembers - The accrued benefit as
of June 30, 2013, shatt be determined based on the average compensation for Act No.
1 members, the years of credited service, and the attained age of the member atl as of
June 30, 2013. For Act No. 1 [layors, the highest compensation as a lvtayor is determined
as of June 30, 2013.

lf the Act No. 1 member is a potice officer or fireflghter with at least 30 years of
credited seMce as of June 30, 2013, the accrued benefit equals 65% of average
compensation if the member was under age 55 as of June 30, 2013, or 75% of average
compensation if the member was at teast age 55 as of June 30, 2013.

For atl other Act No. 1 members, the accrued benefit equals 1.5% of average
compensation multiplied by years of credited service. The benefit is actuariatty reduced
for each year payment commences prior to age 65.

For Act No. 't, Mayors with at least 8 years of credited service as a Mayor, the accrued
benefit witl not be tess than 5% of highest compensation as a lvtayor for each year of
credited seryice as a lrtayor up to 10 years, ptus 1.5% oJ highest compensation as Mayor
for each year of non-lvtayora[ credited service up to 20 years, plus 2.096 of highest
compensation as Mayor for each year of non-lilayoral credited service in excess of 20
years. Non-ilayoral credited seryice inctudes service earned as a Mayor in excess of 10
years. Maximum benefit is 90ff of highest compensation as a Mayor.

(d) Special Benefits

Minimum Benefits

- Past Ad hoc lncreases - The tegistature, from time to time, increases pensions for
certain retirees as described in Act No. 124 approved on June 8, 1973, and Act No.
23 approved on September 23, 1983.
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- Minimum Benefits for Members who retired before Juty 1, 2013 (Act No. 156 of 2004,
Act No. 35 of 2007, and Act No. 3 of 2013) - The minimum monthty lifetime income
for members who retied or become disabted before July 1, 2013, is 5500 per month
effective Juty 1, 2013 (5400 per month effective July 1, 2007, and 5300 per month up
to June 30,20071.

- Coordination Ptan Minimum Benefit - A minimum monthty benefit is payable upon
attainment of SSRA such that the benefit, when added to the Social Security Benefit,
is not less than the benefit payable prior to SSRA.

Speciat "Bonus" Benefits

- Christmas Bonus (Act No. '144, as Amended by Act No. 3) - An annuat bonus of 5200
for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabted member paid in December provided the
member retired prior to Juty 1, 2013.

- Medication Bonus (Act No. 155, as Amended by Act No. 3) -An annual bonus of 5100
for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabted member to cover heatth costs paid in July
provided the member retired prior to Juty 1, 2013. Evidence of coverage is not
required. The amount is prorated if there are muttiple beneficiaries.

Total Pension Llabllity

Allocatlon Methodology

GASB Statement No. 73 requires that the primary govemment and its component units that
provide pension benefits through the same defined benefit pension ptan, recognize their
proportionate share of the totat pension liabitity, deferred outftows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and pension expense (benefit). Effective with the June 30, 2022
measurement date, the proportionate share as of each measurement date is based on the
ratio of the totat pension tiabitity determined directty for each agency based on each
agency's members to the totat pension tiabitity for att Central Government members as of
the measurement date. Previously, the proportionate share as of each measurement date
was based on the ratio of each agency's actuat benefit payments to the total actual benefit
payments paid during the year ending on the measurement date. Agency altocation
percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes; therefore, amounts presented
in the schedule of pension amounts by agency may result in immaterial differences.

Total Penslon Llablllty and Actuarlal lnformation

The Commonweatth's tota[ pension tiabitity was approximatety 522.2 bittion as of June 30,
2023, of which approximatety 5470 thousand is the Authority proportionate share as of
June 30, 2022. The total pension tiabitity as of June 30, 2022, was determined by an
actuarial vatuation as of Juty 1,2071, which was rolted fonryard to June 30,2022
(measurement date as of June 30,2022).

The Employee Retirement System (ERS) elected to use Juty 1 of each fiscal year as the
measurement date for financial information. Based on this election, the June 30, 2022,
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actuariat measurement data was used for the pension benefits financial reporting
recognition as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptlons

The actuarial vatuation used the fotlowing actuarial assumptions apptied to a[[ periods in
the measurement period.

Dlscount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2023, was 3.54%. This represents the municipal bond retum
rate as chosen by the Commonweatth. The source is the Bond Buyer GO ZO-Bond Municipal
Bond lndex, which includes tax-exempt general obtigation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Mortaltty

The mortatity tables used in the June 30,20ZZ actuarial vatuations were as fottows:

. Pre-retirement hlortollty- For genera[ employees not covered under Act No. 127,
PubG-2010 Employee Mortality Rates, adjusted by 10096 tor mates and 110'.% for
femates, projected to reftect fitortatity lmprovement Scate MP-2021 on generationat
basis. For members covered under Act No. 127, the PubS-2010 Emptoyee Mortatity
Rates are assumed for males amd females, projected to reflect Mortatity
lmprovement Scate MP-202'l on a generationa[ basis. As generationat tabtes, they
reflect mortatity improvements both before and after the measurement date.

100% of deaths while in active seMce are assumed to be occupational for members
covered underAct No. 127.

e Post-retirement Heolthy ltortality- Rates which vary by gender are assumed for
heatthy retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of Ptan's experience from 2013 to
2018 and updated expectations regarding future mortality improvement. The PubG-
2010 heatthy retiree rates, adjusted by 100*i for males and 110% for femates,
projected using MP-2021 on a generationat basis. As a generational tabte, it reftects
mortatity improvements both before and after the measurement date. This
assumption is also used for beneficiaries prior to the member's death.

o Post-retlrement Disobled lAortallty- Rates which vary by gender are assumed for
disabted retirees based on a study of the Plan's experience from 2013 to 2018 and
updated expectations regarding future mortatity improvement. The PubG-2010
disabted retiree rates, adiusted by 80tr for males and 100% for females. The base
rates are projected using Mortality lmprovement Scale MP-2021 on a generational
basis. As a generational tabte, it reftects mortatity improvements both before and
after the measurement date.

. Post-retirement Beneficlary liortolihT- Prior to retiree's death, beneficiary mortatity
is assumed to be the same as the post-retirement retiree mortatity. For periods after
the retiee's death, the PubG-2010 (B) contigent suryivor rates, adjusted by 11ffifor
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mates and 120,96 for females, proJected using MP-2021 on a generational basis. As a
generational table, it reflects mortatity improvemenS both before and after the
measurement date.

Other Assumptions as of June 30,2022

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

lnftation rate Not appticabte

Salary increases 3.00fr per year. No compensation increases are assumed

untit Juty 1, 2072 as a resutt of Act No. 3-2017, four-

year extension of Act No. 66-2014, and the current

general economy.

Sensltivlty of the Total Penslon Llablllty to Changes in the Dlscount Rate

The foltowing presents the total pension tiabitity calculated using the discount rate of 3.54%,
as we[[ as what lt woutd be if it were calculated using the discount rate of 1-percentage point
tower (2.54%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.54%') than the current rate (doltars in
thousands):

Current
1% decrease discount rate 1% lncrease

or 2.54% ol 3.54% or 4.54%

Authority's proportionate share
of the total pension tiabitity s 525,533 S 469,786 S 423,163

Deferred Outflows of Resources ond Deferred lnflows of Resources

The fottowing presents a summary of changes in the deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources for the year ended June 30, 2023:
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Deferred
outflows

of resources

Deferred
inflows

of resourcesSource

Benefits paid after measurement date S

Differences between actual and expected experience

Changes of assumptions

Changes in proportion and differences

between actual contributions and

proportionate share

s

2024
2025

31,818

5,894

37,917

10,0n

9,961

36,958

102,331

s

85,706 s 149,250

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inftows of resources
(exctuding emptoyer specific amounts) retated to pension at June 30, 2023 witt be recognized

in pension expense (benefit) in future years as fottours:

Years ending June 30, Amount

(1,554)

(1,554)

5 (3,108)

The previous amounts do not inctude employer specific deferred outftows and deferred inflows
of resources retated to changes in proportion. These amounts shoutd be recognized (amortized)
by each employer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of att ptan members,
which is 6 years for 2018 and 5 years lor 20'19 and 2020, and 4 years for 2021, and 2 years for
?:022,.

Penslon Expense

The pension expense (benefit) for the year ended June 30, 2023, amounted to 5(97,405).

1 1. OTHER POSTEMPLOYIAENT BENEFITS

Plan Descrlptlon

The Other Postemployment Benefit Ptan of the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico (the
Commonweatth) for Retired Participants of the Employees' Retirement S)rstem (the Ptan)

is an unfunded, defined benefit other postemployment heatthcare benefit ptan (OPEB). The
Ptan is administered on a pay- as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in
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a quatifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financiat Reporting for Postemptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions
(GASB Statement No. 75). Under the guidance of GASB Statement No. 75, the
Commonweatth and its component units are considered to be one emptoyer and are
ctassified for financial reporting purposes as a single emptoyer defined benefit OPEB ptan.

The Plan covers a payment of up to 5100 per month to the etigibte medical insurance plan
selected by each member provided that the member retired prior to Juty 1, 2013 (Act No.
483, as amended by Act No. 3). The Ptan is financed by the Commonweatth through
legistative appropriations. There is no contribution requirement from the ptan members
during active employment. The retirees contribute the amount of the healthcare insurance
premium not covered by the Commonwealth contribution. Plan members were eligible for
benefits upon reaching the appticabte retirement age. Act No. 3 of 2013 etiminated this
heatthcare benefit to the Ptan members that retired after June 30, 2013.

Al location lrtethodology

GASB Statement No. 75 requires that the primary government and its component units that
provide OPEB benefits through the same defined benefit OPEB ptan recognize their
proportionate share of the total OPEB tiabitity, deferred outftows of resources, deferred
inftows of resources, and OPEB expense (benefit). Effective with the June 30, 2022
measurement date, the proportionate share as of each measurement date ls based on the
ratio of the totat OPEB tiabitity determined directty for each agency based on each agency's
members to the totat OPEB tiabitity for a[[ Central Government members as of the
measurement date. Previousty, the proportionate share as of each measurement date was
based on the ratio of each agency's actual benefit payments to the tota[ actual benefit
payments paid during the year ending on the measurement date. Agency attocation
percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes; therefore, amounts presented
in the schedute of OPEB amounts by agency may resutt in immaterial differences.

Total OPEB Llablllty and Actuarlal lnformatlon

The Commonweatth's totat OPEB tiabitity was approximatety 5696 mittion, of which
approximatety 512 thousand is theAuthority's proportionate share as ofJune 30, 2023. The
totat OPEB tiabitity as of June 30, 2022, was determined by an actuariat vatuation as of
Juty 1, 2021, which was rotled forward to June 30, Z02Z (measurement date as of
June 30, 2022).

ERS etected to use Juty 1 of each fiscal year as the measurement date for financial
information. Based on this etection, the June 30,2022, actuaria[ measurement data was
used for the OPEB financial reportlng recognitlon as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023.
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Actuarial Assumptions

The actuarial vatuation used the fottowing actuariat assumptions apptied to a[[ periods in
the measurement period.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2023 was 3.54%. This represents the municipal bond return
rate as chosen by the Commonweatth. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal
Bond lndex, which includes tax-exempt generat obtigation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher.

A{ortality

. Post-retirement llortality- Rates which vary by gender are assumed for heatthy
retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of Ptan's experience from 2013 to 2018
and updated expectations regarding future mortality improvement. The PubG-2010
heatthy retiree rates, adjusted by 100ff for mates and 110D6for femates, projected
using MP-2021 on a generationa[ basis. As a generationat tabte, it reftects mortality
improvements both before and after the measurement date.

. Post-retlrement Disabled ltortaltty- Rates which vary by gender are assumed for
disabted retirees based on a study of the Plan's experience from 2013 to 2018 and
updated expectations regarding future mortatity improvement. The PubG-2010
disabted retiree rates, adjusted by 80lt for mates and 100.,96 tor femates. The base
rates are projected using Mortality lmprovement Scate MP-2021 on a generational
basis. As a generational tabte, it reftects mortatity improvements both before and
after the measurement date.

Sensltivlty of the total OPEB Llabllity to Changes in the Discount Rate

The fottowing presents the total OPEB tiabitity of the Ptan at June 30, 2023 catcutated
using the discount rate of 3.54%, as wetl as the Plan's total OPEB tiabitity if it were
calcutated using the discount rate of 1- percentage point tower (2.54%) or 1-percentage
point higher (4.54%) than the current rate:

1% decrease
or 2.54%

Current
dlscount rate of

3.54%
1% lncraase

or 4.54%

Authority's Proportionate share

of the totat OPEB tiabitity s 13,174 s 12,117 s 11,183

-

Deferred Outflows of Resources ond Deferred lnflows of Resources

Because atl participants are inactive, there are no deferred outftows or inftows of resources
as changes in actuarial assumptions, economic or demographic gains and [osses, and
changes in proportionate shares are recognized immediatety during the measurement year.
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OPEB Expense (Benefit)

The OPEB expense for the year ended June 30, 2023, amounted to 569

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through May 21,2024, the date the financiat
statements were avaitable to be issued, to determine if any such events should either be
recognized or disctosed in the 2023 financial statements.

Authorizatlon for AFICA Bonds lssuances

Auxilio lrtutuo Grouo

On November 9, 2023, the Financial Oversight and llanagement Board for Puerto Rico (the
"Oversight Board" authorized AFICA to issue a two-year private-ptacement of taxabte bonds
in an aggregate principa[ amount up to S35 mittion ("Series 2023 Bonds") as a pass-through
for the benefit of the Sociedad Espafiota de Auitio Mutuo y Beneficiencia de Puerto Rico
(the "Corporation") and Hospital Espafrot Auxitio Mutuo de Puerto Rico, lnc. (the "Hospital"
and, together with the Corporation, the "Obligated Group"). The Obtigated Group was
dectared on September 29,2023, the successfut bidder to purchase the hospital previousty
known as Hllr{A San Pablo-Bayam6n (the "Bayam6n Hospitat") pursuant to a U.S. Bankruptcy
Court case. The transaction closed in December 2023.

The Obtigated Group used the proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds to: (1) purchase assets
and retated properties of the Bayam6n Hospital from Grupo HL\{A San Pabto, lnc.
(S18,000,000); (2) partiatly finance immediate substantiat repairs and improvements to the
Bayam6n Hospital 1512,021,375); and (3) fund operating expenses and reserves for
financing and tega[ costs of the Series 2023 Bonds. The Series 2023 Bonds are not
guaranteed by, or otherwise the obtigation of, the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico or any
agency, instrumentality or pubtic corporation thereof, and repayment and cotlateral of the
Series 2023 Bonds is provided exctusivety by the Obtigated Group.

San Juan Cruise Port Termlnal

On January 11,2074, the Oversight Board authorized AFICA to issue up to 5235 miltion of
taxabte and tax-exempt bonds to finance capitat improvements and transaction costs
related to the Pubtic Private Partnership Agreement dated August 15, 2022 (the "P3
Agreement") between the Puerto Rico Ports Authority ("PRPA") and San Juan Cruise Port
LLC ("SJCP") to operate the San Juan cruise terminats for a 3O-year period.

The Project consists of the design, construction, renovation, and equipping of various
facitities at the San Juan Cruise Port Terminal and certain facitities functionatly retated
and subordinate thereto, including the SJCP's acquisition of certain property interests
therein. The transaction closed in February 2024.

The proceeds from the sate of the bonds were used to make a loan to SJCP to (a) pay att
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or a portion of the cost of the Project (described above), (b) make a concession payment
to the PRPA as required by the P3 agreement, (c) pay certain operating expenses and
reseryes for financing and [ega[ costs in connection with the issuance of the AFICA bonds.

Repayment of the Bonds and the AFICA loans witt be made solety by SJCP and the retated
cottateral. The Bonds and the AFICA toans are not guaranteed by, or otherurise have
recourse to, the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico or any governmental agency, pubtic
corporation, or instrumentatity of the Government of Puerto Rico.

AES Puerto Rico Bonds Exchanee Transactlon

On lrtarch 1, 2024, the Oversight Board authorized AFICA to issue up to 5115 miltion of new
senior bonds in exchange for the defautted 5145 mittion in outstanding Cogeneration
Facitity Revenue Bonds, 2000 Series A, which proceeds were originatly toaned to AES Puerto
Rico, L.P. (AES-PR). The transaction, which closed in March 2024, rdtrced AFICA's
outstanding debt issuance by approximatety 28% and provided AES-PR an emergency bridge
financing of S23 mitlion for operational needs and capitat expenditures.

The AFICA AES-PR bonds are not guaranteed by, or otherwise the obtigatlon of AFICA, the
Commonweatth of Puerto Rico or any agency, instrumentatity, or pubtic corporation
thereof, and are nonrecourse to AFICA, the Commonweatth, and a[[ other governmental
entities.

atl
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2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 201E

Prqortion of th Coflective Totat Pension Liabitity 0.m212X 0.m210f, 0.m248fr 0.00305$ 0.00299x 0.002E1r

Proportionate Share of tlp Cdktive Tda[ Pemlon Liabitity 5 469,7E6 5 652,636 5 695,E9E S 758,107 $ n1,713 5 E0t,E53

Covered - Empbyer Payrotl N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Proprtionate Share of Cdlcrtive TotalFension Liabitity

as Percentage of Covred.Emp@ee Payrdl N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous year end.

Covered payrotl is no longer appticabte since contributlons are no longer based on payrotl and were
etiminated pursuant to Act No. 106-2017.

Note: Fiscal year 2019 was the first year that the Authority transitioned from GASB Statement
No. 68 to GASB Statement No.73 as a resutt of the Pay-Go imptementation. This schedute is

required to ittustrate 10 years of information. However, untit a 1O-year trend has been compteted,
information is presented only for the years for which the required supptementary information is

availabte.

There are no assets accumutated in a trust to pay retated benefits.

See independent auditors' report on required supptementary information
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2071 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Proprtion of Totat0ther Post-Emdoyment Eerefit Liabitig 0.00174s 0.00167x 0.00176fr 0.m275s 0.m172$ 0.00156$

ProprtionateShareofToul0thrFost-EmdoFentBenefitLiabitty S 12,117 5 tl,3,l8 5 t5,3gl $ Z2,gte 511,,t48 514,321

Covered- Em&fe Payrd N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Proprtionate Stnre of TotalOtlpr Post-Emdol/ment &nefit Llabitity

as Pccentage of CoveredEmpbyte Payrotl N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous year end

Currently, there are no active particlpants in this plan. Therefore, the coverage payrotl disctosure
is omitted.

Note: Fiscal year 2018 was the first year that the new requirements of GASB 75 were imptemented
at the Authority. The schedute is required to lllustrate 10 years of information. However, unti[ a
10-year trend has been compteted, information is presented only for the years for which the
required supptementary information is avaitabte.

There are no assets accumutated in a trust to pay retated benefits.

See independent auditors' report on required supplementary information.
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